'/ / / l
California Pear: | T

Board of D|r ctors Me
__ I I _
': T |

- !
F R
N . ¥ e




Mission

To provide programs, services and representation that
deliver value to the California pear industry.

Vision

CPAB will be the leader of the industry, identifying and
pursuing opportunities for growth, efficiency, increased value
and long-term viability.

Values

We take an industry-wide, district free approach to
maximizing profits for the entire California pear crop.

We are “fair minded” to the industry as a whole.

We believe in providing the quality and service our
customers demand.

We believe in taking a long-term approach.

We strive to create realistic, innovative solutions to issues
affecting the pear industry.

We believe in accountability and measuring success.






CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD

1521 "I" Street M Sacramento, CA 95814-2016 M Phone: 916 / 441-0432 M Fax: 916 / 446-1063

MEETING NOTICE

Thursday, June 16, 2016

Greene and Hemly
Hemly Home - Downstairs before Pear BBQ
11300 State Highway 160
Courtland, CA 95615
Phone: (916) 775-1379
9:30am - 11:30am

AGENDA

. Call to Order
Il. Roll Call/Introductions
.  Approval of April 12, 2016 Meeting Minutes
V. Public Comments
V. Election Results
Seating of the 2016 Board
= Election of Chairman, Vice Chairman and Members at Large

vl. 2016 Estimates

= Bartlett Estimate
» Variety Estimate

VIl. 2016 Budget and Assessment Rate

2015-16 Budget/End of Year Estimates
2016-17 Assessment Rate

2016-17 Budget

2015 Audit

Line of Credit

Inter- Budgetary Transfers

Board action may be taken on any of the above items i



VIll. Research/Pest Management
Research Update

CSCC Tour

Product Updates

Post-Harvest Position at UC Davis

IX. Tool Box/Public Relations Update
* Communications/Messaging
*  Farm to Fork
= Social Media
»  Targeted Programs

X. Export Promotion/Trade Policy
= Export Program Update
¢ Reverse Trade Missions
= Trade Issues

Xl. Other Business

Xll. Adjourn

The CPAB prohibits discrimination in its programs on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age,
disability and marital or familial status. Persons with disabilities who require alternative means for communication of
program information {Braille, large print, audiotape, etc.) should contact Chrls Zanobini at 916-441-0432.

The California Pear Advisory Board meetings comply with the Bagley-Keene Open Meetings Act that allows for public
comment on all agenda items. For further information related to this agenda, please contact the CPAB Office at 916-

441-0432.

A copy of this meeting notice can be found at

http://www.calpear.com.

Board action may be taken.on any of the above items

2



CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD

EARLY DISTRICT TERM EXPIRES
John Callis, Courtland 4/30/17
Patrick Archibeque 4/30/19
Richard Elliot, Courtland 4/30/19
Topher Chan, Courtland 4/30/18
Matthew Hemly, Courtland 4/30/18
Mark Lubich, Courtland 4/30/18
Alternate:

Eric Smith 4/30/17

LATE DISTRICT TERM EXPIRES
Steve Johnson, Ukiah 4/30/17
Dan Thortnon, Potter Valley 4/30/17
Pat Scully. Finley 4/30/19
Chris Ruddick, Ukiah 4/30/19
Alternate:

David Thiessen, Finley 4/30/17

MEMBERS AT LARGE TERM EXPIRES
David Weiss, Kelseyville 4/30/16
Wendy Buckley Stokes, Walnut Grove 4/30/16



CPAB Committees — 2016/17

Research Committee
John Callis, Chair
Andy Scully

Diane Henderson

Jeff McCormack
Randy Ruddick

Doug Hemly

Brock Zoller

(Postharvest Research is also sent to shippers for input)

PPMRF

Pat McCaa Chair

Doug Hemly Vice Chair
Michel Copeland Treasure
Bob McClain Pres.

Adam Stacy

Broc Zoller

Mike Hildreth

Bill Oldham

Peter Johnson

Marketing/Promotion Committee
Kyle Persky - Chair

Virgina Hemly Chabrra

Larelle Miller

David Thiessen

Management Committee
Pat Scully-Chair

Matthew Hemly

John Callis

Richard Elliot

Steve Johnson



MINUTES
CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD MEETING

April 12, 2016
Sacramento, California

. Vice Chairman Matthew Hemly called the meeting of the California Pear Advisory Board to
order at 9:00 a.m.

. Roll Call - There was a quorum.

Members in attendance:

Matthew Hemly
John Callis

Dan Thornton
Mark Lubich
Chris Ruddick

Members Absent:

Richard Elliot
Chiles Wilson

Other Attendees:

David Hillis, CDFA Marketing Branch
Kassie Frasier, BCI

Doug Hemly, Greene and Hemly
Paul Wilson, Rivermaid

Chris Zanobini, CPAB

Kyle Persky

Stephen Johnson
Wendy Buckley-Stokes
Pat Scully

Patrick Archibeque
David Weiss

Bob McClain, CPAB
Holly Klein, TCD

Mike Isola, Rivermaid
Kyle Persky, Rivermaid



V1.

Introductions

Introductions were made from the floor.

Approval of December 9, 2015 Meeting Minutes

It was moved, seconded, and unanimously approved to adopt the minutes for
the December 16, 2014 meeting (15-12)

Board Elections

Chris Zanobini indicated that the nomination letter and forms were sent out
in February and that nominations were due by the end of the day March 31,
2016. There are two open seats in the both districts and the alternate
position in both districts. The following individuais have been nominated to
run for board seats.

Early District

Patrick Archibeque
Richard Elliot
Eric Smith

Late District

Pat Scully
David Thiessen
Chris Ruddick

Ballots were mailed the first week of April
Research and Field Directors Report

Bob McClain indicated that the research committee along with PPMRF met on
February 11, 2016 to review and decide on research proposals for the
2016/17 season. Mr. McClain reported that the committee discussed a
number of items including increased charge for UC Research overhead, how
do we prioritize how much we spend on research, what is the threshold for
research funding, best practices for smart fresh and making sure that we
have the next generation of growers involved in the discussions.

Mr. McClain reported that the research committee recommends research
funding in the amount of $182,625, (A list of the projects and budget is
attached to these minutes.)

It was moved, seconded, and unanimously approved to adopt the
recommendation of the research committee to fund research in the amount

of $182,625. (15-13)



VIl

VIIL

IX.

Mr.McClain provided a brief report on Kusamin, the California Specialty Crops
Council and asked if there was interest in another Sustainability Survey.

Export Marketing Program

Kassie Frasier from Bryant Christie presented the proposed export promotion
program. Major markets are Canada and Mexico with secondary markets in
Central America, Columbia, Brazil, India and Hong Kong. There is a reverse
trade mission planed for Central America.

(A copy of the Export Program Budget is attached to these minutes)

It was moved, seconded, and unanimously approved to accept the export
program and budget as presented with a total budget of $598,823(15-14)

CPAB Marketing and Promotions Plan

Marilyn Dolan, TCD, presented the proposed marketing and promotions plan
for the upcoming year. The program will continue to build on CPAB’s
communications platforms and incorporating social media, farm to fork, the
international blogger conference, BCRF as well as an event in Lake County
for a total budget of $94,000.

Chris Zanobini indicated that it was the desire of the committee to continue
with the Costco Farm to Table promotion. There was discussion by the
board if it was better to do the magazine promotion or to support sampling.
It was agreed that the shippers would inquire with Costco to gage the
opinion of the produce buyer. In addition a plan for a targeted promotion
with Kroger was discussed. Kroger is one of the few chains that has multiple
divisions and that all shippers did business with. A targeted program with
Kroger would have positive impacts an the whole industry. It was
recommended that CPAB engage with a merchandiser if possible and that we
move forward with Costco and Kroger based on feedback received with a
total budget of $135,000.

It was recommended to the board that the program be approved as
presented.

It was moved, seconded, and unanimously approved to accept the Marketing
and Promotions program/plan as presented with a total budget of $94,000
for PR, Social Media and Events and $135,000 for targeted retail activities
(15-15)

Budget Review and Approval

The 2015/16 projected year end budget was reviewed by Chris Zanobini.
Other Business



There was a roundtable discussion about crop status and outiook as well as
northwest inventories and imports

The next meeting will be held in conjunction with the Pear BEQ in June.
Xl Adjourn

The meeting was adjourned at 11:45.

|, Chris Zanobini do hereby certify that, to the best of my knowledge, the foregoing is a
true and correct copy of the minutes of the California Advisory Board meeting held on
April 12, 2016.

Chris A Zanobini
Executive Director



15808 S¥SIET S6022C
WEis [y (X5 TH
TFeE0r ¥4 7] 090892
659'0L} o79'28) 9T E6T
052'L szt 00S'2
00%'L 005° 4 000t
0¥ LS Z0v 1%
Shs'LL Gha'LL
LG¥'sr i g
000°08 tirEeL £27'2EL
000'0E 00'000'eS 00°000'ES
000'05 000°05
005'L 005°L
EI8'LL el6'sl
9B8'6Y 998'6¥
yig'sl vig'ci
zlo'gl Zia'gl
000'8L 000°8L
€208 £Z0'8Z
EZ0'OL £20'9}
00021 0002}
uno TnolRy Jsanbay
JHAdd awda 18bpng

+B[ej0], YIIBasay UORINPoId Jead v €102

R 5TTY

yoIBesey Ui pejeitossy S1s00 abied o pue Bupuug
|anE1] Uzieesayy 10s|ApY LWBL

Eoqng

siAB(Q
0N "WeyoiAl Yieq - siead JISRieg, J0 w. Ysaylews o} esuodsay pue Apedes Buluediy 1oipaid o) sioo] tejnoajop Busn

SIABQ DN 'WEYoyW Weq - (paieyul JeeN 'MIN) siEad Hefueg, jo AlEnD Jsonesod pue Buuadyy Bugoipaly
15eAJEY}S0d
=eng

{puEjeaz
MmN H-d) aubeys {eouers "vun|) |BIng Ay Wa4) eiBBou | ‘00N ‘Ueusiuow ‘ejesN - Jead Joj Bupes.g paseq-lavien

S1ABQ 0N
‘S[EGN PIABQ - UORISOJ 90(]-}30d LeUBIUOW Huslancidw) Jeed 1o seifojoliyos | Bupeslg peseg-ien el Jo Jueldojzaag

fsopuouaBIpad/saysmparueon/dyy Laps)
UOHELLIOM| PUB LAIE2S8)Y NN PUE Jiud I “0)sosii]) sope) - dnou yoleasay soHuoual) Jeed o) Jo Loddng ) sysqaps

Aunag exe 3990 'Sup PYSERY - SIBEd UBRdOINT Jo) SWAISAS PURYDIQ PUE S¥00}S}00Y
sweysAs pIEYIO

Bolang

clBwEIdeg 300 sk %40 - kg and jo jouod Joy sbujwn | pue snpeld Jo uosuedwog

sineq On URIqng bnog - SpUeyoi( tead BIUOHBD Ul Bud BUMUSA JO UoiEihdod 1 2ouEls|say epioibiung o uopoejag

opisienny
N 'BaASERY Wi - eJoAopwre ey Ad pasne) Jeed Jo JyBigand Jo [auos) Jo) $SpIoLBjoRg MEN JO UONENEAT

ABojoyhsed Jue|d

101N

1500 YHON WNdl O ‘BlueA ejon Aepag DN Jimussls uep qog ‘ousilelses 3900 'siaBuj yonyg ‘ousopusiy

pug 8e7 302N 'SUpI IBuaey - spJey2iQ Jead BLOED W sBng JURS paleloweyy umoig Jo uonnquisig pue ABojousyy
W ‘cledeny Suv-vasn wBiuy ueyy - esusfiows yop Buypo Bunipsld uo joedw sp pue sBuey) siew)
ABojowojusg

ajyLaesodald

o4easay Jedd BluIo|e) 9T0T

Ll

0}

‘oN



California Pear Advisory Board
2016-17 Proposed Budget
{Updated April 4, 2016)

Brazil CPAB ~ MAP Total Market Total
M15GXBR001 {Representation and Communication . $ - 18 - 1% -
Promotional Support (Emerging Markets
M1SGXBRO0Z ¢ ngs) | $ - |$  15000|8  15000|8 15000
Canada CPAB MAP_ Total
M15GXCA001|Trade Communication/Representation/Travel | § 20,000 | & 60,0001 $ 80,000
M15GXCAD02| Technical Assistance $ - $ 7,000 ] % 7,000
M16GXCAD03|Trade Show $ 7,600 | $ 7,500 | % 15,000
M15GXCA004 |Cooperative Promotions $ 130,000 | $ 130,000
M15GXCAD05 |Consumer Research 3 7.500]% 7,500
M15GXCADOG [tastels! Foodservice Promotions $ - 18 -
M15GXCAO00Q7 ltastelS! Consumer Focus $ - $ - ]
fasfe US! G1Bl| $ 5000 | % - $ 5,000 | $ 244,500
— Central America CPAB__ | WAF | Towl
M15GXCENO1|Representation $ 5000]| $ - 4,000] § 9,000
M15GXCENO2{Promotional Support $ 4000] $- 25,000] 3 29,000] $ 38,000
Colombia CPAB. “WAP____|__ Total
M15GXCL001 |Representation/Communication $ 1,000 1 § 5.000]% 6,000
M15GXCLO02 | Technical Assistance $ Sk - 15 -
M15GXC1.003 |Promotional Support $ 1,000 { 19,000 | $ 20,000 | § 26,000
Ecuador CPAB "MAP Total
M15GXEC001 |Representative $ - 1% - 13 E
M15GXEC002| Techpical Assistance $ - $ - $ -
M15GXECO003|Prometional Support $ - $ - $ - 3 -
Hong Kong CPAB MAP Total
M15GXHK001 |Representation $ - 1% - 18 -
M15GXHK002 |Promotional Support $ - $ 15,000 | $ 15,000 | $ 15,000
India__ CPAB MAP Total
M15GXINQD1 |Representation $ - $ 20,000 | % 20,000
M15GXING02 |Technical Assistance $ - |$ ——ud| § -
M15GXIN003 |Promotional Support $ - $ 15,000 | $ 15,000 | $ 35,000
Mexico CPAB MAP | Total
M15GXMX001|Retainer Fee . $ - b ’ 40.‘QQQI $ 40,000
M15GXMX001| Trade Communication, Travel, & Expenses $ 3,814 500] $ 4,314
. M15GXMX002]| Technical Support & Merchandising $ 8,500 $ 15,000] $ 23,500
M15GXMX003]| Trade shows: ANTAD, Retailer Shows $ 5600)| 8% 7,000] $ 12,500
M15GXMX004|Wholesale Promotion $ 2000] 8 "~ 8.000] $ 11,000
M15GXMX005]|Retail/Consumer Promotion $ 6686 | $ 107-,?23 $ 114,409|
M15GXMX008| Produce Analytic Information $ - 13 19.600] { 19,600] $ 225,323
Miscellaneous CPAB : I\MP _' Total
Total $70,000]  $526,823 $506,823
GBI Activity CPAB _ GBI Total
California Grown in Mexico

10



I

CALIFORNIA
P EAR

Advisory Board

June 6, 2016

CALIFORNIA PEAR GROWER CROP ESTIMATING TEAMS

Dear Pear Grower:

It's time to estimate the 2016 California pear crop. District Grower Crop Estimating Teams have been
appointed by the California Pear Advisory Board (see Attachment A). In addition, the Board has appointed ex
officio members of the estimating teams. Attachment B shows 2015 fresh production by varlety. Attachment
C is a 2016 Bartlett Estimates worksheet for your use with historical data from 2011 to 2015 Please note that
the fresh estimates are catculated and displayed in 36-Ib. tight-fill cartons.

The surveys must be made prior to June 13, 2016 and the team chairpersen should phone, fax or email
estimates to the CPAB office no later than 12:00 noon on that day. This information will be reviewed at the
June 16, 2016 meeting of the Pear Advisory Board.

All pears anticipated for a commercial market, including fermented and juice outlets, should be taken into
account. Also, information concerning unusual crop conditions {hail and frost damage) should be
accumulated and passed along to this office.

Sincerely,

cc: Pear Advisory Board Members
David Hillis, CDFA Marketing Branch

Attachments

1521 “|” Street - Sacramento, CA958‘I4~21)116 (916) 441~0432 « fax (916) 446~1063




2016 BARTLETT & FALL PEAR GROWER
CROP ESTIMATING TEAMS

EARLY DISTRICT

Sacramento - San Joaquin- Upper Sacramento Valley

Chuck Baker, Chair
Chris Frieders
Mark Lubich
Matthew Hemly
Robert Arceo

Bob McClain
Richard Elliot
Topher Chan
John Callis
LATE DISTRICT
Lake Mendocino
Pat Scully, Chair Pete Johnson, Chair
E. A. Rohner Larry Thornton
Diane Henderson Pat Scully
Brent Holdenried Randy Ruddick
Larry Rogers Bob McClain
David Weiss
Greg Rohner
Ken Barr
Broc Zoller
Bob McClain

12

Attachment A



0 0 6Z2°LE0°T 091°251 b2o'ecr'z | vetevl [ v0e'ze6 | ZL0'TZE | veozsic | SEeEsl | BSTELET | GiZEl | w0l
2c8'oee 9z.'ve £1Z'e9e LG'6) 029'0¥e | oE@'ST Evr'6iz | LEGEC EELOIE | G242 QuRopUBY
¥szZ'zel 659'8E £El'or Te'9z Zei'886 | 80’8 era'o0l’t | Srzse 98K'8ELL | 997'4¢E ]
£rL'zIo'L 5.1'€B LZ'sve's | 6oK've Zee'ore’l | 6z1'oy | Bve'Zie’t | 0z'DOV | Lre'vze’t | 2s0'oel _wsm_u b...L
1 senp
AP,
§31va i1 #9E SNOL w9 SNOL T SNOL Ji#E | sNOoL /1 #9e SNOL L #9E SNOL
ONLLYYIS OJEWINST 950Z 12U §102 { Fioz £102 2102 iz

2 AINIWHOVLLY

910Z ALVINILST SHVAd L1371HVE VINHOLITYD



S[Ej0) BACqR

Ul pepnjou
TEer o vEZZ [0 0 ) FL T R VA A 0 €195 [wE0r TR e
6¥Z'IPLT |6SEG) e ve S¥9T €8T 198°7} 1008 SLI6LF  [LL9'GL 560°L1 ¥sz'zel  [zEgTace £PITI07 | STVIOL
YEY ] ¥ 0 0 €9L} YeES 0 0 SP6 | 0 85G'€ T
#E0'L 9 Z6 £¥ ] ¥S0°2 L10°2) ¥65T 168'lL zi0'9 BT le0'e 051
¥00°} ¥z 25 95z 6Z ¥EL'G gzl'ee 188’0 Z58'L EED'LE LOL'PL zol'sy SEl
£69°L 812 1ze 9EY 642 oze's ¥6Z'29 1SB'6 g5k’ €LL'E9 6658°EZ S6¥'G6 0zl
629'F £.0°¢ g5li 6.T E33 6686 9zz €l 91FL 09L'L IBE'08 ¥81'Se 129821 oLl
RSZC 9ET'v 095 €57 EFGC ZLVEL £70'9L 08L'0b 5l6¢ £99'LE} 180 Y 198'G6L 00}
o9r'z L¥E'S 0¥ ¥LS glse ra0'sl 600 L1 0EE'ZL 8Y6'1 ZEL'OSL BSLLG TR 06
6LLE EZ6'Y L0E £ee §G'G (TWAGT 0./8'8L 9068 008'Z avl'65) vii'er tec'esl (i}
Gea'l 682°G }EE ) 1927 SvZel vG0 b 8,99 L2971 SIL'BEL  |950°ZE LT 0L
EFO'L 89% 152 oyl ¥E8 6l ZE0 64 g10'c 0 k] ) 2I8°¢ 08
spay Jenng osog nepieg [ nepreg | yopreg | °4S
F=1T) 1) B30 [EYBELN youalg alwon asog usp|on uoswuMUels | syudsung e oupsopusyy |  sonny

pieog A10SIAPY Jead eiuiojien

spusfeainbg punod gg U papodasy
Joday juswdiys 5102

14



0000007 oos‘stl 622°120' 081251 l2o'sG¥' | VECTVL | YOGTEET | ZLOCLF | PEoeeLT | Se6SE | SBZELRE | ELTTEN | STVLOL
Seil 000'057 000'LZ Zeg'oce azl've 212'eaZ 116'81 0Z8'9¥E 0£8'GZ err'8LZ L£5'cT egl'ole ST oujocpuey
:rd7a 000°00. 000°'€E ¥GZ'z8l B8G9O'REC £El'op8 are'ez 2el'a%6 £60'2¢ er8'00LL | s¥2'ce 9gi'sEL’) | Bos'ie e
=173 000'050'1L 00g'26 EF1'TILO'L Gll'cB LLZBYEL | Bovre Zee'ove't |ezionr | eve'zee’ | eozoor | ve'vze't | zeo'oet ‘.&h%ﬁ_o Ezz__b
S3IVQ [ Wit SNOL 371 #9% SNOL [ i SNOL YL#E | SNOL L #E SNOL VL #E SNOL__| v
ONLLEVLS | BPUNIST 9407 1euld 5107 | PI0Z ELOZ 2oz HOZ ]

O LNIWHOVLLY

9102 ILVIILST SHVId LLI1LHVE VINHOAITYD



101

0LEP.¥T
00001 0000} [ENTSY
0 0 pioo siojAe L
0085 00¢ 0085 Japng youai
0082 009} 00zt 0005 3lia104
0Zve 0zve [ENRETS
0szeL 0099 0629 801Wod
00009 000Z 0008€ 00001 osog
000022 000S€E 00001 000522 os0g
19S8Ny UBR|I0D
0000002 000002 000052 0000501 naneg
00462 0054 002 00512 pay 18ylo
00695 000EL 0058 00¥SE uoswLME)S
00} 00S.) sajudsung
[E6T axeT OuUISOpUay FEYH

sjewnsy ysald 9107 - 189d BILIOJIeD

8)RLIISS YSal} 91.0Z U} 4O} PAsn 3( [|1m uoneuLiojul siy] - 341 punod 9¢ ul ejewse ysaly Jodal ases|d




00591 09T'LST FEETPT OST'ELT €15'T9T oatb'6LT 8rrZ'e91
000°000°Z 622'TE0'T TT9'8SP'T  TTT'SB6'T  6BE'SSL'T  BLT'EIE'S  000°€L8'T
6E0'SST 8¥0°0LT TTY'2ST S65°£8T LP9LLT 699°66T 96'9L1
00S°L 668 SE8'Y 89t'ZT ¥26'ST SrLvT S6E'ET
6€S'8 8887T LI0°0T StbvT ¥£0'9T £22'0C PTLET
000'9€ 7959¢ SSZhh vEL'ES 1656t 6T.'09 bPTLTS
000'€0T 669211 ¥rz'06 816'90T 750'96 6L6'€0T 6ET'86
1531 9102 ST0Z v10Z €102 FALird TT0Z 0T0Z
L0v'66T 60802 152202 66L'€8T 600°LLT 8LE'TTZ o0ov'91Z €91'6ET LL6'LET 857592
955264 'E EER'TLL'E €8E'08S'E  TIT'TLST Qo0'Lte's 8LT'VLL'E  8LL'ev¥'E  TIT'TZT'Y  €€£'6Z9'E  [99GTHY
989'STZ 509912 Y0ZETT 661°€8T 600°LLT BLETTZ 0091z £9P'6ET LIGLET 852'99¢
TL6'PT obe'6T 786'%1 65012 98vT Loz S18°02 00002 050°sz 80/'vE
69T 96L'TT €56°0T - -
992’89 €68°£9 Lbv'y9 86Z'9% 9v'8s LEE'L9 96079 86TvL 957’59 55’64
041911 9L5°411T [4: X441 Zry'9TT 669°€0T 669EET 6TFEET GOZSPT 19411 966051
6002 8002 £00Z 9002 5002 002 £002 2002 100z 0002
LT6'80€ ovL'eLT SS56LT ovs's8z T9S'SKE EPT0EE 05L'68¢ SSLETE 8€8'967 LS9'TIE
TTL'88S Y Pr6e18C SLTEVI'E  BLTIETY 199°642°E T2L'9T8'Y  BLL'S0E'E  RLTYSY'E  9S0°006'S  ¥HY'90T'v
LT6°80E ovL'eL2 §65'6LZ 0v5s8e T95'SPT EvT0LE 0S.'s8e SSLETE BEB'96T LS9'TIE
018'6E 79’9t £9Z'9€ 166'9€ 69t'st TE6'EY 89¢'CE ObE'0s SLE'VE [Ara%:13
26528 €£9°05 6/5'59 €919/ ¥€0'65 18898 ZTs'6S LL1°29 T0Z'0L 9T6‘cs
015981 S#998T 60LLLT SBECLT 8S08ET TEEGHT 098E6T 8ETTOT 79ZZ61 665102
6661 8661 1661 9661 5661 861 £661 Z66L 1661 0661

9T0Z - 066T UCREZ|IIN Jed( Bluiop|e)

suol uo|ueg
suole) sjia|eg
suo] |e3o]
J2Y10 passanodd
9410 Ysal4
Hojueg ysald
Alauue)

suol najeq
suoue) snajueqg
suoj jejoL
134310 passanold
43410 Ysadd
Rajueg ysal4
Alsuue)

suol 3a1ieg
suopie) syaueg
suoj |ejo)
Jay3Q passanold
1930 Ysaly
Hajliey ysa.q
Asuuer

17



D6/15M16

Bartletts
River
Lake
Mendocine
Total

Total Crop
Bartletts
Cther
Crganic

Total Tons
92,500
33,000
21,000

146,500
156,500

145,500
10,000

Fresh Rate % 0.20

ASSESSMENT WORKSHEET

Fresh in 36 Ib TFE
Barilatt
Sunsprites
Starkerimson
Other Red
Bosg
Golden Russel Bosc
Comice
Secke!

Forelle

French Butter
Organic Bartlstt
Organic Other
Organic Bosc
Other

Processed In Tons - {20001bsion)
Processed - California
Processed - Norfhwes!
Processed - Other

Total Bartlett (Tons)
Total Other (Tong)
Total Organic {Tons)
Grand Total

Quanity

2,474,370
2,000,000
17,500
56,900
28,700
60,000
270,000
13,250
3,420

|
8
S WD DR A WA RS

5,800

10,000

103,000
7,300

146,300
B,539

155,039

2016

Crop Assumptions

Fresh Pack

1,050,000
700,000
250,000

2,000,000

Assessment

Rate

0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20
0.20

4.26
1.50
1.50

o ) 0 WA AL AWM WA

Frosh Tons Fresh %
18,900 20%

12,600 38%

4,500 21%

36,000

Total

494,874.00
400,000.00
3,500.00
11,380.00
5,840.00
12,000.00
54,000.00
2,650,00
684.00
1,560.00
1,180.00

2,000.00

448,000.00
437,750.00

11,250.00

943,874.00

18



CODE

3010
3020
3025
3020
3060
3085
3070
3080

5110

5165

5180

5365

5200

5250

5360

5370

5355

5700

5400

5630

5600

5640

5660
5662

5663
5665

5664
5660
8670

5801

5900
5809

Carry In

INCOME

Fresh
Processed-California
Processed-Northwest
Other Pears

MAP Grant

GBI

interest

Other Income

NET INCOME

TOTAL INCOME

EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATION

INSURANCE
INTEREST
MARKETING BRANCH
TRAVEL

MEETINGS

AUDIT

ANNUAL REPORT
INDUSTRY GROUPS
WEBSITE
RESEARCH
CONTINGENCY

MARKETING
Processed Export

Processed Domestic

Industry Toolbox
Promotions
Pubilic Relations/
Trade Shows
Support Materialt
Food Safety
General Agency .

Fresh Export

Program
Canada
Maxico
Braz¥
Central America
Columhia
Hong Kong
Other
Miscelaneous
Program Travel

BCMA-GBI

Program Adminlstration

ISSUES MANAGEMENT

Bad Debt Expense
Suspense

TOTAL EXPENSES

CARRY FORWARD/BALANCI

May 3, 2014 YE

LR R R

265,263.00

541,306.24
371,693.00
1,266.00
11,923.00
558,859.00
224.00
20,474.00
1,505,745.24

1,771,008.24

325,000.00
6,422.00
100.00
16,012.00
22,459.00
12,961.00

10,400.00

12,590.00
15,647.00
196,912.00
6,999.00

962,636.00

160,967.00
60,000.00
33,528.87
25438.13

6,000.00

38,000.00

801,669.00
531,086.02
265,000,020
200,000.00

25,000.00

18,5569,62
18,528.40
4,000.00
206,580.58
64,000.00

12,500.00

4,6561.00
1,606,289.00

165,719.24

e

California Pear Advisory Board
2016-17 Proposed Budget

May 31 2016 YE
165,719.24

563,637.00
403,047.00
105.71
7.542.29
550,947.00

445.00
2,382.00
1,548,106.00

1,713,826.24

325,000.00
6,531.00
1,662.00

17.789.00
24,684.00

3,120.00

14,035.00
4,500.00
261,306.00
1,839.00

856,343.00

210,775.00
£3,018.31
63,556,689
25,000,00

3,200.00

36,000,00

644,56B.00
578,792.81
287,461.52
223,305.24
13,225.20
24,042.30

25.480.64

5,277.91
1,775.1%
64,000.00

26,261.00

320,00
1,539,270.00

174,555.24

Updated D6/15/16

19

2015-16 Approved 2015-16 as of May
Budget

LR R R

c

139,321.65

520,965.00
467,500.00
750,00
11,400.00
468,842.00

2,500.00
1,471,957.00

1,611,278.65

325,000.00
6,500.00
1,562.13

17,000.00
15,000.00
5,000.00

12,600,00

25,000.00
2,000.00
200,000.00
5,000.00

833,842.00

226,000.00
60,000,00
75,000.00
20,000.00
10,000.00
25,000,00
36,000.00

807 ,842.00
543,842.00
245,500,00
203,000.00

19,342.00
31,000,00
20,000.00
26,000.00

5,000.00
64,600.00

20,000.00

1,467,904.13

143,374.52

B A B H

]

31, 2016
174,566.24

499,904.80
478,972.37

7.923.01
334,156.20
145,034.20

294.41
14,609.97
1,480,894.96

1,855,450.20

325,000.00
5,805.00
2,470.00

14,731.12
16,716.37
1,780.64

31,200.00

8,200.00
450.00

121,674.65

959,883.50

206,968.80
60,556.98
4,563.30
17,576.37

3,260.15
25,000.00
28,000,00

752,914.70
543,880.50
180,963.79
234,556.16

60,303.25
24,000.00
15,782.00
21,991.62

6,283.48

145,034.20
64,000,00

12,101.36

60.00
1,500,072.64

156,377.56

LR RN

2015-16 YE
Projection
174,555.24

499,504.80
478,972.37

7.923.01
468,842.00
260,000.00

300.00
14,609.97
1,730,552.15

1,908,107.39

325,000.00
5,805.00
2,470.00

17,000.00
16,716.37
2,500.00

31,200.00

17,500.00
450,00

200,000.00

1,084,884.28

206,968,80
60,556.98
84,563.30
17,579.37

3,280.15
25,000.00
38,000.00

877,9265.48
545,125.48
243,500.00
203,000.60

19,342.00
31,000.00
20,000.00
20,000.00

6,283.48
260,600,060
72,800.00

15,000.00

1,718,535.65

186,671.74

F

20116-17 Proposed
Budget
186,571.74

494,874.00
437,760.00

£ o

11,250.00
528,823.00

300.00
1,472,997.00

1,6569,568.74

325,000.00
6,500.00
1,500.00

17,000.00
15,000.00
5,000,00

12,000.00

20,000.00
1,000.00

185,000.00

935,623.00

259,000.00
110,000.00
70,000.00
20,000.00
10,000.00
25,000.00
24,000.00

676,623.00
603,823,600
244,500.00
225,323.00

15,000.00
28,000,600
26,000.00
15,000.00
35,000.00

5,000.00

72,600,00

10,000.00

1,633,623.00

125,945.74



CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended May 31, 2015

20



TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORTS:

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
On Compliance and Other matters based on an Audit of Financial Statements

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program

And on Internal Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures

Audit Firm Identification

21

Page No.

10
11

12

13-14

15-16
17
18-20

21



KEITH C. ROOD, CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

Independent Audit Report

To the Board of Directors
California Pear Advisory Board
1521 I Street

Sacramento, CA 93814

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the enterprise activities of California Pear Advisory Board,
as of and for the year ended May 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Board’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, Accordingly, I express no such opinion,
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

1 believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the enterprise activities of the California Pear Advisory Board, as of May 31, 2015, and the
respective changes in financial position and, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

These financial statements are special-purpose regulatory presentations for the California Department of Food and
Agriculture; therefore, the financial statements do not include management’s discussion and anmalysis.

875 University Avenue, Sacramento, California, 95825. Telephone (916) 929-4450, Fax (916) 929-7257

-1-

22



Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule

I have applied certain limited procedures to the budgetary comparison schedule in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with Thanagement’s responses
to my inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge I obtained during my audit of the basic financial
statements. I do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Office of Management and Budget
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Prafit Organizations, is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In my opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required
Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, 1 have also issued my report dated December 4, 2015, on my
consideration of California Pear Advisory Board’s internal control over financial reporting and on my tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of my testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial repotting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering California Pear Advisory Board’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Culifornia Department of Food & Agriculture

In accordance with the Manual for Performing Agreed Upon Procedures for California Agricultural Marketing
Programs, I have also issued my report dated December 4, 2015 in evaluating California Pear Advisory Board’s
compliance with the California Department of Food & Agriculture Accounting Guidelines and General Rules,
Effective October 1, 2009 With Amendments Effective January 1, 2011,

Keith C. Rood
Certified Public Accountant
Sacramento, CA

December 4, 2015

2-

23



CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD

Statement of Net Position
May 31,2015
Assets

Current Assets

Cash $ 179,780

Certificate of deposit 111,804

Prepaid expenses 2,964
Total Current Assets . 294,548
Fixed Assets

Office furniture and equipment (net of depreciation) 41,363
Total Assets b3 335,911

Liabilities and Net Position

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable $ 176,396
Total Current Liabilities 176,396
Net Position

Invested in capital assets 41,363

Unrestricted 118,152
Total Net Position 159,515
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 335,911

See accompanying notes and independent accountant's audit report.
3-

24



CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in Fund Net Position

Operating Revenues

Fresh Pears

Assessment refund

Processed - California

Processed - other

MAP grants

Interest

Other income

Net assets released from restrictions
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Administration
Office supplies
Insurance
Interest
Depreciation
Marketing branch
Travel
Meetings
Industry groups
Website
Research
Industry toolbox
Promotion - fresh export
Issues management
Suspense and miscellaneous
Total Operating Expenses

Change in Net Position
Net Position at Beginning of Period

Net Position at End of Period

For the Year Ended May 31, 2015

Temporarily
Unrestricted Restricted Total

$ 593,662 - $ 593,662
(10,025) (10,025)

403,047 403,047

7,648 7,648

550,947 550,947

445 445

2,382 2,382

550,947 (550,947) -

1,548,106 - 1,548,106

325,000 325,000

3,839 3,839

6,531 6,531

1,562 1,562

7.520 7,520

17,789 17,785

21,664 21,664

3,120 3,120

14,035 14,035

4,500 4,500

261,306 261,306

210,775 210,775

644,568 644,568

24,261 24,261

320 320

1,546,790 1,546,790

1,316 1,316

158,199 158,199

3 159,515 - $ 159,515

See accompanying notes and independent accountant's audit report.

-4
25



CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended May 31, 2015

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash received from producers
Cash received from MAP and GBI fund grants
Cash received from other sources
Interest received
Cash paid to suppliers and vendors
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Reinvested interest
Net Cash Used by Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Advances from First Northern Bank of Dixon line of credit
Payments to First Northern Bank of Dixon line of credit
Net Cash Used by Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Period

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Period

Reconciliation of Change in Net Position to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Change in Net Position
Adjustments:
Depreciation
Decrease in accounts receivable
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in accounts payable
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

See accompanying notes and independent accountant's andit report.

-5-
26

$ 1,004,358

663,722

9,741

445
(1,481,373)

196,893

(445)
(445)

158,000
(158,000)

196,448
(16,668)

$ 179,780

$ 1,316

7,520
119,383

(2.964)

71,638

$ 196,893



CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended May 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES

This summary of significant accounting policies of California Pear Advisory Board is presented to assist in
understanding the Board’s financial statements.

Activities of the QOrganization

The California Pear Advisory Board (Board) is a nontaxable instrumentality of the State of California Department of
Food and Agriculture (Department) Marketing Branch established on March 9, 1992 under Chapter 1, Part 2,
Division 21 of the California Food and Agricultural Code. The Board represents producers of all western-type pears
produced in California which are marketed in fresh or processed forms. The Board’s mission is to aggressively
advance the interests of California pear growers. The Board facilitates this by establishing quality control standards,
inspection requirements, research and sales promotion and market development, The Board shall consist of upto 12
members to assist in the administration of this program.

Basis of Accounting

The Board is a proprietary fund and operates as an enterprise activity. This fund type applies all applicable
pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued on or before November 30, 1989 that
are not in conflict with applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements. An
enterprise fund accounts for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business
enterprises, where the intent of the Board of Directors is that the costs of providing services to the industry on a
continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through assessment revenues.

The financial statements of the organization have been prepared on the accrual basis.

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net position unless use of the related asset is limited by third-party
restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net position.

Fund Balance Disclosure

The Board implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions (GASBS No. 54) in 2011, as required. The purpose of GASB 54 is to improve the
consistency and usefulness of the fund balance information to the financial user. The statement establishes fund
balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the organization is bound to
honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be spent.
Proprietary Fund Financial Statements - The Board classifies net position in the proprietary fund financial
statements as follows:
Net Investment in Capital Assets includes the organization’s capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation)
reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.
Restricted Net Position includes assets that have third-party (statutory, bond covenant, or granting agency)
limitations on their use. As of May 31, 2015, the organization had no restricted net position.
Unrestricted Net Position includes unrestricted liquid assets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand and highly liquid
investments with original or remaining maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase.

See accompanying independent accountant’s audit report.

27



CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended May 31, 2015

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Receivables

All receivables are recorded at carrying amount and are expected to be realized in cash within a year. Management
uses the direct write-off method.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value.

Concentration of credit risk

The Board has invested in short-term (less than one year) interest bearing accounts. Financial instruments that
potentially subject the Board to concentrations of credit risk included cash and cash equivalents and a certificate of
deposit. As of May 31, 2015 the California Pear Advisory Board’s cash and the certificate of deposit were $67,677
in excess of the insured limits under the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

Investment risks

Investment securities are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, market and credit risk. The Board has a
formal investment policy that is reviewed periodically.

Fixed Assets

Office furniture and equipment is recorded at cost and depreciated over their estimated useful lives, between 7 and
10 years, using the straight-line method.

Operating and Non-operating Revenues

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated from ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues arc assessments and grants. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the ongoing
operations, including the cost of services, administrative expenses and depreciation on fixed assets. All other
revenues and expenses are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Current liabilities

Current liabilities include accounts and grants payable. They are obligations whose liquidation is reasonably
expected to require the use of existing resources properly classifiable as current assets.

Revenue Recognition

Assessment revenue is recognized in the period collected by intermediary entities {processors or handlers), based on
assessment reports filed by these entities. The Department shall verify that proper payment has been made by the
processors or handlers for and on behalf of producers. The assessment rate was $0.19 per 36 pound equivalent
carton for the year ended May 31, 2015. Assessment revenue for the year ended May 31, 2015 are based on
assessments filed for the marketing year June 1, 2014-May 31, 2015 respectively and is recognized when reports are
submitted. This is the point at which such assessments are measurable and available as net current assets, This rate
is within the range established by the California Department of Food and Agriculture.

See accompanying independent accountant’s audit report.
-7

28



CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended May 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — CONTINUED

Budgetary Data

Each year the Board adopts a budget which provides for its general operations. Budgets are prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting.

Use of Estimates

In preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly,
actual results could differ from those estimates,

NOTE 2 — FIXED ASSETS

Fixed assets consists of the following:

Balance at Balance at
5/31/2014 Additions Dispositions 5/31/2015
Office fumiture and equipment $ 80,323 3 - $ - $ 80,323
Less accumulated depreciaiton {31,440) (7,520) {38,960)
b 48,883 =$ (7,520y § - b 41,363

NOTE 3 - RESERVES

To provide adequate carryover funds to ensure a smooth and continuous operation of the Board until new crop year
assessments are received, it is the Board’s policy to maintain a minimum reserve no greater than 20% of the budget.
As of May 31, 2015 the Board’s reserves were at $159,515.

NOTE 4 - LINE OF CREDIT

The Food and Agricultural Code provides authorization for the Board to borrow money when necessary. The Board
established a $200,000 line of credit in 1995 and increased the line to $300,000 in 2006 which is renewed on an
annual basis. The line of credit had a $0.00 balance as of May 31, 2015.

NOTE § ~ RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

The Board entered into an agreement with Ag Association Management Services, Inc. (AAMSI) for necessary
administration, program and support services and office facilities. Chris Zanobini, the executive director of CPAB
is also the owner of Ag Association Management Services, Inc. AAMSI shall provide administration and staffing to
meet the current Board program needs, including but not limited to promation and marketing, research, issues
management, pesticide advocacy and collection and dissemination of industry statistical information. Travel,
lodging and meals for the Board business trips shall be reimbursed to AAMSI according to the Board’s established
policy. One employee of AAMSI, who is not a registered lobbyist, will be designated by the CGFA Chief Executive
to serve as the Board Manager. The Board agrees to pay an administrative services fee of $325,000 to AAMSI
during the period June 1, 2014 through May 31, 2015. As of May 31, 2015 California Pear Advisory Board has
$13,091 in the accounts payable balance due to AAMSI.

See accompanying independent accountant’s audit report.

29




CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD
Notes to Financial Statements
For the Year Ended May 31, 2015

NOTE 6 — REFERENDUM YOTE

The Department of Food and Agriculture of the State of California, acting pursuant to and by virtue of the authority
vested in it by the provisions of the California Marketing Act, being Chapter 1 of Part 2, Division 21 of the Food
and Agricultural Code shall conduct a referendum of producers of California pears every fifth year to determine if
the Marketing Order shall be continued or terminated. The Department conducted the referendum vote of California
pear producers during the period of February 6, 2012 through March 6, 2012. The Board has been approved to
continue another five years through May 31, 2017. The referendum results are presented below:

Percentage of producers that submitted valid ballots 48.84%
Percentage of producers who voted in favor of continuation 95.24%
Percentage of volume represented by producers voting in favor of continuation 97.35%

See accompanying independent accountant’s audit report.
-9.

30



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

31



Operating Revenue
Fresh Pears
Assessment refund
Processed - California
Processed - other
MAP grant
Interest
Other income

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses
Administration
Office supplies
Insurance
Interest
Depreciation
Marketing branch
Travel
Meetings
Audit & compliance
Industry groups
Website
Research
Contingency
Inspection
Industry toolbox
Promotion - fresh export
Trade issues
Issues management
Suspense

Total Operating Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Net Position at Beginning of Period

Net Position at End of Period

See accompanying accountant's report and notes to financial statements,

CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD

Budgetary Comparison Schedule
For the Year Ended May 31, 2015
2014 - 2015
Variance
Favorable 2013 -2014
Budget Actual {Unfavorable) Actual
$ 597371 § 593662 § (3,709) $ 541,306
(10,025) (10,025) (35918)
446,200 403,047 (43,153) 407,612
8,321 7,648 (673) 13,188
469,279 550,947 81,668 558,859
150 445 295 224
5,000 2,382 (2,618) 20,474
1,526,321 1,548,106 21,785 1,505,745
325,000 325,000 v 325,000
3,839 (3,839) 7,339
6,500 6,531 31) 6,422
1,000 1,562 (562) 100
1,520 (7,520 7,520
17,000 17,789 (789) 16,012
18,500 21,664v" (3.164) 22,459
6,000 3,1200 2,880 12,961
12,000 12,000 10,400
35,000 14,035 20,965 12,590
2,000 4,500, (2,500) 15,647
201,895 261,306 v (59,411) 196,912
20,000 20,000
6,999
171,000 210,775\ (39,775) 153,628
663,279 644,568 18,711 801,669
730 (730)
20,000 23,531 (3,531) 12,500
5,000 320 4,680 4,651
1,504,174 1,546,790 (42,616) 1,612,809
22,147 1316  $ (20,831) (107,064)
158,199 158,199 265,263
$§ 180,346 $ 159,515 $§ 158,199

-10-

32



CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the year ended May 31, 2015

Federal Federal
CFDA Expenditures
Number Grantor Name Name of Prchram
10.601 US Department of Agriculture Market Access Program 3 550,947
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 550,947

See independent auditor's report and notes for this schedule.
-11-

33



CALIFORNIA PEAR ADVISORY BOARD
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended May 31, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The California Pear Advisory Board (Board) Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Schedule) includes the
activity of all federal award programs administered by the organization, The California Pear Advisory Board is
organized under Section 58745 of the California Marketing Act, being Chapter 1, Part 2, and Division 21 of the
Food and Agricultural Code of the State of Califomnia.

Basis of Presentation

The Schedule presents total federal awards expended for each individual program in accordance with OMB Circular
A-133. Federal award program titles are reported as presented in the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA). Federal award programs include expenditures only. The Board did not receive federal non-cash assistance
and did not participate in federal insurance or loan programs.

Basis of Accounting

The expenditures for each of the federal financial assistance programs are presented in the Schedule on the accrual
basis. This is the same basis the financial statements are presented. All expenditures represent reimbursement for
expenses billed by a vendor.

Matching Costs

The grani agreements did not require matching funds.

NOTE 2 - RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS

The regulations and guidelines goveming the preparation of federal financial reports vary by federal agency and
among programs administered by the same agency. Accordingly, the amounts reported in the federal financial
reports do not necessarily agree with the amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule which is prepared on the
basis explained in Note 1.

See accompanying independent accountant’s audit report,
-12-

34



OTHER INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORTS

35




KEITH C. ROOD, CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Conirol over Financial Reporting and
Cn Compliance and Other matters based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

To the Board of Directors of
California Pear Advisory Board
Sacramento, California

I have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of California Pear Advisory Board (a state local agency),
which comprise the statement of net position as of May 31, 2015, and the related statements of revenues, expenses
and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,
and have issued my report thereon dated December 4, 2015.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing my audit of the financial statements, I considered California Pear Advisory Board's
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing my opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of California Pear Advisory Board’s intemal control. Accordingly, I do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with govemnance.

My consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during my audit I did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that I
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether California Pear Advisory Board’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, I performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracis, and grant agregments, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions
was not an objective of my audit, and accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. The results of my tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards,

875 University Avenue, Sacramento, California, 95825. Telephone (916) 929-4450. Fax (916) 929-7257

-13-
36



Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of my testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the organization’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

A cRed

Keith C. Rood
Certified Public Accountant
Sacramento, California

December 4, 2015

-14-
37



KEITH C. ROOD, CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
And on Internal Control over Compliance Required by OMB Circular A-133

To the Board of Directors of
California Pear Advisory Board
Sacramento, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

I have audited California Pear Advisory Board’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in
the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of California
Pear Advisory Board’s major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2015, California Pear Advisory Board’s
major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants
applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of California Pear Advisory Board’s major federal
programs based on my audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above, I conducted my audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occwrred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
California Pear Advisory Board’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as I
considered necessary in the circumstances.

I believe that my audit provides a reasonable basis for my opinion on compliance for each major federal program,
However, my audit does not provide a legal determination of California Pear Advisory Board’s compliance,

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In my opinion, California Pear Advisory Board complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for
the year end May 31, 2013.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of California Pear Advisory Board is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
my audit of compliance, I considered California Pear Advisory Board’s internal control over compliance with the
types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance
with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of California Pear Advisory Board’s
internal control over compliance.

875 University Avenue, Sacramento, California, 95825. Telephone (916) 929-4450. Fax (916) 929-7257

-15-
38



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis.
A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than
a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

My consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. 1 did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that I consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of my testing of
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133.
Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

KoTh-<ReD

Keith C. Rood
Certified Public Accountant
Sacramento, California

December 4, 2015

-16-
39



SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
Unqualified auditor's report issued

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified? yes
Significant deficiencies identified? ___yes

yes

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?
Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs;
Material weakness identified? yes
yes

Significant deficiencies identified?
Ungqualified auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with Section 510(a) of OMB Circular A-133? ___Yyes

Identification of major program:

CFDA
Number Name of Federal Program
10.601 Market Access Program
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:
B L

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?
Section II — Financial Statement Findings

None found.

None found.

_17-

40

[P

ol

|><

X

Section II1 — Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

3

=

no
none reported

no

$

no

none reported

300,000



KEITH C. ROOD, CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REPORT ON APPLYING AGREED-UPON PROCEDURES

To: Matthew Hemly, Chairman
California Pear Advisory Board

I have performed the procedures enumerated below, as specified in the Manual for Performing Agreed Upon
Procedures for Califomnia Agricultural Marketing Programs, solely to assist the specific parties in evaluating
California Pear Advisory Board’s compliance with the California Depariment of Food & Agriculture (CDFA)
Accounting Guidelines and General Rules, Effective Ociober I, 2009With Amendments Effective January I, 2011,
and the Board’s internal policies and procedures, Management is responsible for the Board’s compliance with those
requirements. This agreed-upon procedures engagement was conducted in accordance with attestation standards
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The sufficiency of these procedures is solely
the responsibility of those parties specified in this report. Consequently, I make no representation regarding the
sufficiency of the procedures described below either for the purpose for which this report has been requested or for
any other purpose.

Agreed Upon Procedures Performed

Review the Board’s compliance with the California Department of Food & Agriculture’s Accounting Guidelines and
General Rules and the program’s internal written policies and procedures, for the following accounts and
transactions during the year ended May 31, 2015:

Account 5200 — Travel

Account 5201 - Travel — Chris Zanobini
Account 5204 — Travel — Bob McClain
Employee use of program-owned vehicles
Financial transactions between entities
Contracts

™o an o

Assess the Board’s current internal control structure in relation to the California Department of Food &
Agriculture’s Accounting Guidelines and General Rules, focusing on the following internal control transaction
cycles as defined by the CDFA:

General ledger and bank reconciliation oversight
Safety of property

Cash receipts

Cash disbursements

Documentation for travel, lodging, and meals expenses

pacs o

I was not engaged to, nor did 1 conduct an examination, the objective of which would be the expression of an
opinion on compliance with the Department’s Accounting Guidelines and General Rules and the Board’s internal
policies and procedures. Accordingly, I do not express such an opinion. Had I performed additional procedures,
other matters might have come to my attention that would have been reported to you,

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the California Department of Food and Agriculture, the

California Pear Advisory Board and the management of the program and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Kom<RoP

Keith C. Rood
Certified Public Accountant

December 4, 2015

875 University Avenue, Sacramento, California, 95825. Telephone (916) 929-4450. Fax (916) 929-7257
-18.

41



Details of Procedures Performed

In order to review compliance with California Department of Food & Agriculture’s Accounting Guidelines and
General Rules and the Board’s intemal policies and procedures for the period of June 1, 2014 - May 31, 2015:

a
b.

C.

f.

1 selected 1 out of approximately 3 transactions from general ledger Account 5200 — Travel for testing.
I selected 2 out of approximately 5 transactions from general ledger Account 5201 - Travel — Chris
Zanobini for testing.

I selected 2 out of approximately 10 transactions from general ledger Account 5204 — Travel — Bob

McClain for testing.

I determined that there were no program-owned vehicles.

I determined if any inappropriate financial fransactions were occurring between California Pear

Advisory Board and related entities by:

i. Reviewing financial transactions between California Pear Advisory Board and Ag Association
Management Services, Inc. to determine whether they met requirements of the contract
between the entities. I selected 17 transactions of approximately 25 transactions for testing,

I selected 5 out of approximately 14 contracts for review and testing.

In order to assess California Pear Advisory Board’s current internal control structure, I identified key controls of
each cycle listed below and as described in the California Department of Food & Agriculture’s Accounting
Guidelines and General Rules, and compared the key controls to the Board’s current internal control procedures. I
also performed verification of ezch key control by selecting a sample item to confirm the process.

papoE

General ledger and bank reconciliation oversight
Safety of property

Cash receipts

Cash disbursements

Travel, lodging and meals

Results of Procedures Perform

Transaction Testing

a.

Account 5200 — Travel: I noted 1 out of 1 transaction tested included evidence of official expense
claim forms, proper authorization and proof of attendance. The transaction tested was for an
automobile mileage reimbursement. The mileage reimbursement rate was correctly calculated and was
within California Department of Food & Agriculture’s Accounting Guidelines and General Rules.
Account 5201 — Travel — Chris Zanobini: I noted 2 out of 2 transactions tested included evidence of
official expense claim forms, were authorized by a Board member when signing the reimbursement
check, and had proof of attendance. The 2 transactions had 27 separate invoices with all original
receipts attached. Expenses were within California Department of Food & Agriculture’s Accounting
Guidelines and General Rules,

Account 5204 — Travel — Bob McClain: I noted that 2 out of 2 transactions tested included evidence of
official expense claim forms, proper approvals and proof of attendance. The 2 transactions had 18
separate invoices. 18 of the 18 invoices had original receipts attached. Expenses were within the
California Department of Food & Agriculture’s Accounting Guidelines and General Rules.

I determined that there are no program-owned vehicles.

Financial transactions between entities: I noted 17 out of the 17 transactions tested were in compliance
with the terms of the contract. No findings noted.

Contracts: 1 noted 5 of the 5 contracts tested were service contracts that had the required terms and
were in compliance with California Department of Food & Agriculture’s Accounting Guidelines and
General Rules.

See Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures.
-19-

42



Internal Control Recommendations
a. General ledger and bank reconciliation oversight: No findings noted.
b. Safety of property: No findings noted.
c. Cash receipts: No findings noted.
d. Cash disbursements: No findings noted,
e. Documentation for travel, lodging and meals: No findings noted,

f. Contracts: No findings noted.

See Independent Accountant’s Report on Applying Agreed-Upon Procedures.
-20-

43



Keith C. Rood, CPA

FEIN 68-0206184

875 University Avenue
Sacramento, California 95825
Tel (916) 929-4450

Fax (916) 929-7257

keith@cpataxadvice.com
www.cpataxadvice.com

-21-

44



URGENT

)
ONJ ALLSHD) INVAYg =

Ul ansLy) uphig

weJsold Sunaylejn 1odx3
pieog AIOSIApY Jead elulojijed

Sdivid
VINYOAITVD

A




URGENT

Alewwng
198png 10dx3 9707«
s}oyJde|N Suidiaw] .
S1deA Adewid o
suollepusWiiioday
1o3png Hodx3 9T0Z X
MBIAIBAQD
sulpung dvIN<«

MB3IAJDAQ UOIIRIUSS3Id

Jarag de-lapy
ayd

T4
VINYDAITYD

™

46



URGENT

199
ubredwe? eiquiojo) maN (000°00€$) £1/910Z PUe (000°09Z%) 9L/S1L0Z <

%ET €78'87SS LT0Z/910T
%0 v8'89¥S 910Z/ST10C
%62 6.2'69YS GT0C/vT0T

aanouby Jo Jusunede Se1g PeUkin

01A1S (e no1Iby ublaiog —

vasn

MBIAIBAQ SuIpun{ dvIN

poreg Gangapy
VA
YINYOd1T¥D

r

47



%0t

%St

%0¢C

%SC

doJD jo %-—— soxOg ‘q| 9€ mm
GI0Z +I0Z €I0Z ZIOZ TIOZ OT0CZ 600 800 L0OT 900T

00000T
00000T
000°00€
00000V
000005
000009
000°00L
000°008

000’006

AlolsiH 1odx3 |ejol gvdD

48



URGENT

%ES
epeue)

%0V
0JiXaN

%S
BB WY [B1JUI)

%0
eiquiojod

S13Je\ podx3 STOZ 9vdD

49



URGENT

5 8

R
~

%t
%t
%S
%9
%L
%8

%6

dosd jJo 96— sax0g "} OF

ST0T ¥10C €T0C CT0C TIOC O010Z 600C 800CT LOOT 900C

ofBy T
SLEBLT 4 Z a8 7
ez [ YE°C B ve@lse
| 20 &
%9 [N SHEECC o~
n,_.m i V. *w. A
%8

4

%8

0

000°0S

000°00T

000°0ST
[4

000007

000'0ST

000°00€

6
0000S€E

AJO]JSIH 1odx3 epeue)

et L 4
LTl
YINYOATTIVD

r N

50



URGENT

00Svres

00S°LS

000'0£TS
000'STS

000°£S

000°08S
uoijepualwoday

910¢

L

00S‘0vTS |eloL
005°LS

D[ AT A

i

U2JEDS3Y J2WNSUO))

000'811S SUOIIOWO. 3AeIad00)
000STS MOYS apel|.
0S DIUBISISSY [ed1UYydd]
000°08S$ |2Aed| /fuoneluasaiday /fuoiiedunwwo)) apes|

198png STOZ

epeue)

193png epeue)

oy dreriapy
1Y 94

VINIDAIIVD

L

51



doJd Jo 94— saxog ‘q| 9¢ M=

STI0C V10Z €T0C ZT0CZ TIOZ OTOC 600 800T LOOZ 900T

000°0S
000°00T
65 000°0ST
000002
000°0SZ
000°00€
I Py e 000°0S€
- e 000°00Y

w7y 000°0SY
N 000°00S

URGENT

%CT

AJO1SIH Hodx3 02IX3IA

Py Srvapy
yad
YINBOLITIYD

)

52



URGENT

IVd pue (sjelalew

Ma3U 3pnjoul 03}) suoizowoid 10} Spuny |eUCIPPY <«

€7E'STTS

009°6TS

60V VTTS

000‘TTS

00S2TS

00S€TS

PTEYS

000°0vS

uoljepuswwoday
ST0Z

000°€0Z$
000°LTS
000°€6S
00065
00S'2TS
005°€CS
000°8S
000°0tS

198png STOT

[eloL

UOI1BW.IO)U| 211AjBUY 9INPO.(

UOIOWOId Jawnsuo)/|ielay

UOI10WOUd eSOy

SMOYS J3[IE13Y ‘QVLNY :SMmoys aped}
duisipueyaiay 1 Joddng [ealuydag
sesuadx3 ¥ ‘|aAeI] ‘uoiE2IUNWIWOY Bpel]

994 Jaulejay

O2IX3IN

193png O2JIXaN

poreg sonispy

[ERYANd
VINTO4II¥D

r =

53



SHOdXD JO 9%-— SIX0Q *q| 9€ W
ST0C #T0C €10 TT0C TT0C OT0T 600C 800C LOOZ 9007

000°0T

000'ST

0000

000°SZ

BIlIBWY |esjud) :s1oyJejn Suidiswl gvdD

parey wariapy

LA
viNTG4IivD

N

54



URGENT

duoseas 0} Joud SHSIA 19)4ew/aped) :uoissndsIq «

SuOf0W04d 10§ SpUNy [BUOKIPPY «

000'SES lelor
000°9¢$ 1i0ddns jeuonowoug
000'6S uoljejuasaiday
UOI1epUSWIWOIDY
a8pn IAL
9107 12spng STOC AlANDY

193png eoLRWY [BJIUd)

55



URGENT

9o14d pue aduesip :se8uldjjeyd «
GTOZ Ae ul euly) pue 3uoy SUoH 01 UOISSIW Bped] «

000'STS 000°0ZS :|ejol
000°STS 000'STS 1oddns |euoiIoWo.d
0S 000'SS$ uollelUasaIday
uonepuawwosy
a8pn IN]D
et 198png STOT AIAIOY

8uo) SUoH :s1jael 8ul8iawW3 gvdd

e o L

ARV INd
VINUGATLYD

r

56



URGENT

Buiidwes siojs-uj pue suopesiUNWWOD apel| «
uiiepsy ‘e ‘ejobog :sem) «

0009Z$ -|€10]

000°0TS Hoddns |euonowoly

000°9$ uoljejuasalday
uoljepusuwodsy 910¢ Ananoy

yyid
YINYOAITVD

BIqWo|0) :s1a)Je suisiaw] gyd) =

oS

57



URGENT

sauny! 9

[oUUBYD UOISIABID] «
uoneojjdde suoyduews <«

olsqoM <«
suonejel allgnd <

SONIAIY «
sjuedionued welbold /| «
L1/910C

10} 000°00€$ Pepiemy «
alnjjnoulbe

SN e uo buisnooy

199 (91/5102) 000°092$ «

BIqUIO|OD UI [gD YSNIOgES

pars dingapy
[RVATT
YINHOAINYD

S




URGENT

uoijeluasaidau
AuUno2-ul :uoIssNoSIq «
SSejo 9|ppiw buibisws
Ynm uonendod uoijjiq 8UQ <
peqeltapAH ‘alojebueg
‘lequiniyl ‘1yeQ :payoeal sani) «

BTt afoe Aie ser
ksivy &?Wrﬂ# - J B USED
S OJ)S\ JB PaJoNPUOD SUOHOWOLd «
000'GES :|exoL
000°STS uoddns [euonowouy
000°0ZS uonejussatday
UOEPUSWWOIY 9TOT Awanoy

BIpu| :S1a)JelA Suidiaw] gvd)d

PR LMppp

Ll
VINIDETiYD

¥

59



URGENT

000°T6S :|lesol

000'STS pun4 Asuasunuo)

0009¢S eIQWIO|07) PUE Jopend]

000'STS eulyy/suoy SuoH

000SES elpu|
UOBPUSWIWIOIRY 9TOZ 1HEN

198png s1ayJe sulsiaw3

VINHOATIVD

F

60



URGENT

%8E
ODIXSIA

%9
ey
jeyuad
%1l
epeue)
%V
eIquioioD
%l
%E %9  |izesg
8uo) 8uoH e|puj

AJewwing uolepuswwoday 198png 9107

61



URGENT

T T T

Thank You

62



California Pear Advisory Board
2016-17 Proposed Budget

(Updated April 4, 2016)

Brazil CPAB MAP Total Market Total
M15GXBR001 | Representation and Communication $ - 1% - 1% -
Promotional Support (Emerging Markets
M15GXBR002 Funds) $ - 1% 15.000 | $ 15,000 | § 15,000
Canada CPAB MAP Total
M15GXCA001 | Trade Communication/Representation/Travel | $ 20,000 | § 60,000 | § 80,000
M15GXCAQ02 | Technical Assistance $ - $ 7.000 (% 7,000
M15GXCADQ3|Trade Show $ 7500 % 7500 | § 15,000
M15GXCAQ04 |Cooperative Promotions $ 130,000 | $ 130,000
M15GXCAD05|Consumer Research 5 75001 % 7,500
M15GXCA006 |tasteUs! Foodservice Promotions $ - $ -
M15GXCAO07 |tasteUS] Consumer Focus $ - $ - |
fasfe US! GBI $ 5000 )% - 3 5000 |% 244,500
Central America CPAB MAP Total
M15GXCENO01|Representation $ 5000 & 4,000] $ 9,000
M15GXCENO02| Promotional Support $ 4000 & 25,000} $ 20,000 $ 38,000
. Colombia CPAB MAP Total
M15GXCL001 |Representation/Communication $ 1,000 | § 5000 % 6,000
M15GXCL002 |Technical Assistance $ - $ - $ -
M15GXCL003 [Promotional Support $ 1,000 | $ 19,000 | § 20,000 | § 26,000
Ecuador CPAB MAP Total
M15GXECQ001|Representative $ - $ - $ -
M15GXEC002| Technical Assistance $ - $ - $ -
M15GXEC003]|Promotional Support $ - 18 R E - |% -
Hong Kong CPAB MAP Total
M15GXHK001|Representation $ - $ - $ -
M15GXHK002 | Promotional Support $ - $ 15,000 { $ 15000 | $ 15,000
India CPAB MAP Total
M15GXIN0O1 |Representation $ - 5 20,000 | § 20,000
M15GXIN002 |Technical Assistance $ - 18 _= K3 -
M15GXINO03 [Promotional Support $ - b 15,000 | $ 15,000 | $ 35,000
Mexico CPAB MAP Total
M15GXMX001]Retainer Fee _ $ -1 $ 40,000] $ 40,000
M15GXMX001| Trade Communication, Travel, & Expenses $ 3814] § 500] $ 4,314
M15GXMX002]| Technical Support & Merchandising $ 8500] § 15,000] $ 23,600
M15GXMX003| Trade shows: ANTAD, Retailer Shows $ 5500 % 7,000] § 12,500
M15GXMX004| Wholesale Promotion $ 2,000 % 9.000] $ 11,000
M15GXMX005|Retail/Consumer Promotion $ 6,686 $ 107,723 $ 114,409
M15GXMX006| Produce Analytic Information $ -1 % 19,600{ $ 19,600| $ 225,323
Miscellaneous CPAB MAP Total
~ Jotal $70,000 $526,803 $508,823
GBI Activity CPAB GBI Total
California Grown in Mexico

63






AR Sy
H¥1d
VINUQIFIVD

r %

9107 ‘9] aunp

S 5

BLPSW 1eLD0S/suolie)ay dlgnd

L1/910C
Dieog AIOSIAPY Jead eluiojijer

64



o
E¥Ia
VINIOIITIVYD

‘.._

'siead umolg-A)1ed0) ul 1$9493UL S9JRIAUSS ey siowey
Jead pue siead eluiojlje) Jn0OQe UOLIRWLIOUL SIRYS

:A8a31e.]S
‘sjuelnelsal pue .m._w._._MHG._ ‘sJaWnsuod eale-0Ojuswe.ldeg
:1938.Je |

"slead
UMOUS A)1ed0) 10j puewap pue 31sa1ajul JSWNSUOD ajeal)

19A123(q0

65



T amery
Tvaad
YINNOIITVH

r

1985019 poo4 1a8.1e]|

UMOUD) eLuiojle) YIMm Jaulied
92USIpny elpaw jeLdos pying
diysuolje)ay 3404-0)-wiey a5esana

SOde] £1/910C

R4
€
4
'l

66



67



Loa 0L
EVidd
VINNDSEIYD

rm

ysaugoesdaay # XOgu| 0) uzes BN A Kunuwiwiog ng A Ysaid ann . sfiig jpao A BIBYS A WIWOD pud S

WO0D*YJ0J0JWie )P MMM

68



000°0LS °
ased adldal J19SInoA
-3]-)00D) 8Y3 uo ad1Day painies e

19]19]1SMaU IsSNsNy UL aanjesa ] e
susiedwed jlew3 123l € o
woo* v_._ou_BEL_mbmw UO SUOLIOWOId
® T 8 i
suolLjels o__um._ Wwo2.493uj 9 uo ”_n_wm ‘sny
‘Ainrioy yjuow uad Ggg/syods olpeld /G7 e

95e)ded |euoljowo.d %40 4-03-w.ie je

69



ey Ly
24

(191181sMau) aseqelep aul)-uo pjing
"9]ISQOM N0 0] SIUSIA SALI(Q

‘Sjouueyd
BLPaWl 1RID0S Ul SISWnsuod asesuy

‘suey Jead eluiojle) ajeal)
© & &KL

9JUSlpny elpaw |eldos piing “Z#

70



10:€ UOISSaS /9IS UO awWl) *SAY

0€°¢ UOLSSOS /pOMaLA saded SAy
8 Aep /suolssas “§Ay
SUOLSSaS 10|

hat hadoaset At MR LI i
%LS L. %8013 92:20-00

SUCISSIS MAN % . BjeY eouncy UDHBING UO(SERg "By

ey ?éﬁf%

g9¢ 996G°¢ 866 8ve'lL
ucisseg / sebag smaebey si88() sU0|5505
JopsiA Bupimey | JolsiA MEN I
2102 Aew - BLOZ Wity

I
BUOISSES @

9102 AeN — 9102 yoJep
mco_mmwm mu_mnw>>

7



Pemny gy
BY¥aq
YINNQILETYD

L

‘aded
Siswie) uesiyie 03 yul
UILM Sulwiiey ayqeutelsns

pue sisw.e} y) jnoqge 3sod - UM siauie) yvo) Jnoge 3sod -
%00Qa5e wouj dyje.] }00qgade wodj d1jjen
uL ayids -g| Aew - D uL axids -1z Adenuer - € e

‘ased
SiauwLle) uesiyie 03 yul

910z Aew 8L0Z |udy

(8]
P~
Rep/idy e
"0

08

9102 Anenuqe 2102 Amnuer

- gad/ueroeq
€0

0§

SJl1Ajeuy 911Ssqom



SEWS | Blew m

ousald
siAB(Q
ajaaiuung
1po

leejey ueg
8|Aescy
sajebuy so
COSIOLEIY UBS
BA0ID 313

oJusWIBIOeS

Ao

b1 i T4 vZ-aL

+599 ¥3-95 ot

%08
%0
Jepueg SUCIRSaS (810) J0 %E 0P eby
QpesojoD E|QUWOj0D
epeAaN a Ay
puelfiey mm._.n.,w_ yinog
epuoj4 Blensny
BLOZUY - BUIYD)
sexa| Blpu
eiubap epeug)
ucBuysess o S_xms_
HOA MeN Iizeug
BllIONRD Qu—mu_.w S9JeIS paun au_._..:...oo

910z Ae\ nuy) sepy — soydesBowa(q |eoiydelfoss
¢92U3LPNY INO SL OYM

73



oy gy
LW
¥INNOQATIVYD

_W b/ Uoieasay

| 6. fniqeuteisng
8 Jauulg-sadiday
06 Sadiday
€6 Ppleog uead ayl Jnoqy

POl Aligeileay/sai3siiep-3ini4 nQ
b7l S92J4nosay Surjayiew

GGl sJauleq ueslyy
ZLL IdeIuo)

Pom;” o8edawoH

1
|
t&?bﬁ _rw\ ; - d...n t__l_ -W-Jwﬂﬂvﬁ.l NQ.M_\Q ﬂh& __. n M

———ay I i -

9L0C >m_>_ nYy) yorep — wmmmn_ pausiA doj.

¢¥e 8unjoo) Aayy ase Jeym

74



=

—

6v-1
90
90+

N

sjpuuey)

AUty :ww.__ « »ﬂ _

19:¢

i
|
q
_1

YA %95 %19
0°¢ %89 %16
L€ %05 %15
9°C %05 %E8
ElosSoot s _.%g._. SN
%Arﬁﬁ W S|
Gl:1 9°1
9¢:0 6l
GG:1 bt
00:1 8’1
0¢-0 8l
10:1 AN A
X 2Y4 L1
g .@..,m.u. . ._‘,@m@q.n i

vOL
§9¢
Th4

804

r——

.ﬁ

Qocy i fi% | Ecﬁrfrﬁm

=

%08
%85
%8¢
%L9
%9L
%99
V44

.wﬁm%._ m ;
=35 c‘_f% |

—C = = A

Jeiog
Je.L1aay
123.1q
yoseas
owesio
rdtﬁ@%
%08 0l
%GL [4*
%001 €l
%.8 Gl
%001 Li
%C6 8¢
%67 8
ST ‘m,, .‘ A
AAS N @ﬁﬁ.ﬁ. ol

123ML
B)S1p004

Spieydl( 123em)ns
NSM

Z)1A0qa7 plaeq
(211q0w) yoogadey
(Dd) xooaoum“_

vf% “
5w - L

9102 Ae\ nuy) Je\ — saoInog |eslsjey dog
S91IS SULLIS)9Y B S)oUURY)

75



amys |
- Bluawnueg dojg SIBUIC B/ PUR 2/02BH YuELS "eoucH usayon (ICD
& mm RYS Wanwod Lih

s/eadyO# UMOIE) BUIGHIRD

iRqeumEIsnsMICY RBd B MM TIY

*AjunuIweD [BqojB B 1o} poc} AyyBsy Buimodi e Au; puElsapUn
fay 1Aisnopes Aiea AllqRUEISNS 8x@) SiauLE) Jead BjLUofieD nop

e 31 AR ol i) AIOY | AT b Py
sieag Bjwoyey | 4

1sod Jejndod jsopp

S S
¥¥ila
YiN¥QIIYD

F™

961 el o Vi
V89 B0 136 0961
PIZ'€SL 787'8F 60L°EE  95€‘ST
98V'E £+ 0E+  geis

3

a m._u>>o__ou__| -
G96°C LD jo ueig
Y00(ode

v9
0€8°C.

L8V €Q

6£E+

S1S0d 12101
sjuswasesuy
~ suolssasdwy

SI9MO0Y04

76



M¥NHBOMOGIDALOD IBM) id NMOHOVDH
Aegeei | yeAc# {940 JO SiESA OO | JO} PUNOIE UBAG BARY

Lolym jo awios ‘sdal) JeadyDit 10} SAO} YONW 0S BABY ap\
%61 41 106 1 fep - 2O DG SIEOd BRUOIHED

H 1 #YQUDHIN/WOD sepimy oid

NMOHDVO# %ITAZ/A'MO [Siewure) pajesipap 2 1seaey

Injiiunog s,vO eieiqeieo am Aepo] jfeqfiyviens Addep

%60 L 8Ll 91 JBN - jeed EO® SIBed BIUIONED

o)y Juswoabebuz  sewebebus suoissaidw| O Ul wU_.WOQ ._W_DQOQ JSONN

L apa

M)

HO'A

861 oe| ue] 09  SI50d |ej0L
Gyl GL1 99 8T 91¢ judWedesuy
ML°09  ASZL AZOL 49°0Z %89l suoissaiduy
010°L  SE+ ZZ+ VN  V/N  SIOmo)j04

_ _ SIOMO|[O} {7/
) 'G10g Aenuep

191UM |

77



P
TEVvEa
YINUQFITYD

1 o

abed 104 0} wie4 UMO Ino asueyUT]
104 0} wued jeq yum ajeulploo)
lequialdag ‘bny ‘Ainp ul 3e6pnq Buisiuaape 1SOpPON
‘8d1991 3104 0} Wie painjes) — |8SINOA ) Y009 = ydeg
‘Sjueune)sal [eoo| yym abebug = Bny
'SJomolb [eoo| 1oy jown 1seley Jead s = Ainp
:S9Way| uoseag-u|

Jeal sy} jo Jspurewsl sy Joj welboid aouBUSJUIBI
Jdag ‘bny ‘AInp jo syjuow sy Buunp Bunsod paosueyug

UEB]d BLPSW ]eLd0S 9107

78



*s3sod _uw_u.moom o
1das ysnouyy Ainr yoam Jad xoq auQ e
Y00gade{ U0 AeMeaALS X0q Jead e

UMOLD) elLulojl ) YIIM Jaulled "S#

79



oo damsapy
EvEd
YINUQIITYD

™

Y517 Bujoo)
91dwis jeay
josung -

9INSLO7 B J9ARI| -

SUIM B pooy -

]eUsIPp *duj awl]
yauneq Anr-prwy
ustedwed uonw ¢

VD 1SIA pue umoldg y)

[S1e1SYD0Y aJe siowie

80



L Lo 4
EVAA
YINAOAFIVD

e

B}joQ ojusweloeg
OlI0)SIH Yybnouy} ainjuaapy 340 4-01-wie
6¢ AInp
slabbojq pooj Qg 10} INO|
losuodg Jaiweald

OLOZ // LE-8Z AINTC //

VINGO4ITVD // OLNIWVYHOVS

S198380]g po04 19840 ‘p#



spJeyoalQ Jeyem||ns
UOS 8 HOMIIT " piAeQ

Aleltauly

}sejuo) ojoyd *

o
wk "L AP ]
SAIpUT BlUIOJIED "W'E g

82



0€:£ 03 O€:G

w6 Ainf ‘AepLi

dreq Aleuin)
ojuawe.ldes Jo ajse|

83



¥vad
YINYQAL1YD
r =

\

NOLLYANNOH :
HOHY3ISTY .
HIDNYD !
1Sv3Ng .

sdiysJosuods

84



¢AJUNO0Y 9yeT Ul JUSAD
a]qe] wiej Mau e a3ea.ld aM 0(g

85



000‘¥6$
000°0LS =
000, S =
000G §$ =
000°L S$=
«000°01$ =
000°G § =

000°Z€S =

000¥TS =

e
EV¥Ta
YINGQIFTVYD

UoL1epUNOS Yd1easay Iadue?) Jsealq
9dUaI9}u0) 19880)g poo4
sojepdn a1sqam
AemeaAln xog Jead
95eyded 1eUOLIOWO.Id %104 03 uLie je3
diysiosuods ».104-03-wiie

6 X Jluow Jad 0p0‘z$ = ddueUjUIRY

000°G$ = sejjoq yeuonowoly
(4aquiardas ‘Bny ‘Ainr) ppo‘es = 394 Ayauow
. uolLjouwiold /juswageueyy eipaw JeLios
8 X Yjuow Jad 0pp‘1$ = adueuajuUIRY
(3das “asnSny ‘Ainr ‘sunr) 000‘¥$ = 4aurelal Ayyuow
SalIAL1oe welisoud jje jo uotyejuswa)dwt pue YsISIaAQ

}95png

86



L

INOA YNVHL



910Z ‘0L ¥dYV

S 038t

‘AVanNns

88



'

-

4 ‘,
unt

»-y_ ‘f .
LakcCounty.Pears
! x y

il fr¢ )] nhe! i l‘m. 130 | ree

i

89 . s



7_04_CALIFORNIA PEAR

90






10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

BEFORE THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
DEPARTMENT OF FOOD AND AGRICULTURE

In the Matter of appointing Membersand )  Order appointing Members and Alternates to the
alternates to the California Pear Advisory )  California Pear Advisory Board for the term of
Board based on nominations received. ) office starting inmediately and continuing through
)  terms as specified.

WHEREAS, the California Department of Food and Agriculture (Department), acting pursuant to
and by virtue of the authority vested in it by the provisions of the California Marketing Act (Act), being
Chapter 1 of Part 2, Division 21 of the Food and Agricultural Code (Section 58601 et seq.), issued the
"California Pear Marketing Program" (Program), which became effective March 9, 1992, and incorporates
amendments through June 6, 2012, and

WHEREAS, Article II of said Program provides for the establishment, membership, and term of
office of members and alternate members of the Pear Advisory Board (Board), the administrative body
established to assist the Department with the administration of the Program, and

WHEREAS, Article II of said Program also provides that each year the term of office of one-third of
the Board membership expires on April 30, and

WHEREAS, the Board’s current nomination procedures, established in Article II of said Program,
stipulate that every year following receipt of nominations, a preference vote is to be conducted among
California pear growers to fill producer member and alternate producer member positions with terms expiring,
and

WHEREAS, the Board’s nomination procedures also stipulate that those individuals receiving the
highest votes are to be considered by the Department for appointment to producer member and alternate
producer member positions, and

WHEREAS, Article II of said Program further stipulates that when making seat allocations the
Department shall also take into consideration geographic location to ensure that not less than three (3)
members from District 1 represent Sacramento County, not [ess than two (2) members from District 2

represent Lake County, and not less than two (2) members of District 2 represent Mendocino County, and

N




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

WHEREAS, a preference vote to replace the individuals with expiring terms of office has been
conducted, and

WHEREAS, after tallying the preference votes received the Department determined that the
individuals listed herein received the highest and second highest number of votes, and

WHEREAS, the results of the preference vote meet the Program’s criteria regarding geographic
location of producers’ operations;

NOW THEREFORE, the California Department of Food and Agriculture, acting pursuant to and
by virtue of the authority vested in it by said Act and said Program, does hereby appoint the following

individuals as members for terms that begin immediately and continue through April 30, 2019:

District 1 — Producer Members District 2 — Producer Members
Patrick Archibegue - Lodi Patrick Scully — Lakeport
(Replaces Chiles Wilson) (Reappointed)

Richard Elliot - Courtland Chris Ruddick — Ukiah
(Reappointed) (Reappointed)

It is further ordered that the following individuals be appointed as alternate members for terms beginning

immediately and continuing through April 30, 2016.

District 1 — Alternate Member District 2 — Alternate Member
Eric Smith — Wheatland David Thiessen — Finely
(Replaces Patrick Archibeque) (Reappointed)

The appointments made herein shall continue until their successors have been appointed and have
qualified.

Ftod Aafi

DATED: May 31,2016 ROBERT MAXIE, Chief
Marketing Branch

20hd 0423 | 2016 0531 | 291

92




R AN
CALTFORNIA

SPECIALTY CROPS COUNCIL

2016 California Specialty Crops Tour

Monday, July 18, 2016 Orientation Reception/Dinner (Visalia)

Times Location Agenda Speakers
4:30 PM Visalia Reception at Comfort Suites Comfort Suites, Visalia
5:30 PM Visalia Dinner and Qrientation — Program concludes by 7 pm { Tricia Blattler, TCFB
Tuesday, July 19, 2016 Day1 (San Joaquin Vailey)
Times TBC Location Agenda
6:00 AM Visalia Breakfast at hotel
7:00 AM Visalia Depart Hotel at 7:00 am
7:05 AM Visalia Citrus ACP Quarantine - HLB Sean Hardy, CDFA & Dan Dreyer
7:35 AM Visalia San Joaquin Valley Agriculture Overview San Joaquin Valley Agriculture Overview
7:50 AM N. of Visalia Prune Production and IPM Rick Buckner — Gary Obenauf
9:15 AM Reedley Stone Fruit — Production and Processing
10:25 AM Selma Raisin Production John or Tom Chandler
11:15 AM Parlier Fumigation Demonstration Tri Cal — Kraig Willlams
12:00 PM Parlier Lunch @ USDA-ARS facility Lunch @ USDA-ARS facility
12:45 PM Parlier USDA/ Agricultural Research Service Overview Jim Throne
1:00 PM Parlier Drones — Another tool for Ag Derek Celedon
1:30 PM Parlier Irmigation 101 Jim Ayars
2:15 PM Parlier Water Coalition Sttuation Parry Klassen
3:00 PM Parlier Post-Harvest Research to overcome trade barriers | Spencer Walse
4:30 PM Arrive Visalia Return to Hotel /Dinner on Your Own
Wednesday, July 20, 2016 Day 2 (Visalla fo Salinas)
Times TBC Location Agenda
6:00 AM Visatia Broakfast at hotel — Luggage out to bus by 6:45 am
7:00 AM Visalia Depart Comfort Suites — Depart at 7:00 am
7.25 AM Visalia Water Overview — Bus Speaker Awbrey Bettencourt
8:00 AM Huron Gartic, Onions, Westside Water Situation Dave Anderson & Bob Ehn
9:00 AM Coalinga Sequoia Packing Christian Marrione
9:30 AM Coalinga Pepper Production Glen Fischer
12:00 PM King City Area Lunch @ King City Park Glen Fischer
1:15 PM Soledad Carrot Production & Research Needs Mike Thorp & Steve Kolke
200 PM Gonzales Cool Season Vegetables, herbicides, labor, buffer Mary Zischke, Mark Mason
zones, spinach processing plant, thinning machine | Mark McLaughlin
5:30 PM Castroville Dinner and Synthesis Discussion at La Scuola Hosted by Grower-Shipper Association
located in Castroville and L eafy Greens Research Board
Eve. Salinas Hotel check in at Laurel tnn, Salinas

Thursday, July 21, 2016 Day 3 (Salin

as to Sacramento)

Planning & Discussion

Times TBC Location Agenda
6:00 AM Salinas Breakfast at hotel — Luggage out to bus by 6:30 am | Breakfast at hotel
7:00 AM Depart Salinas Departure from Laurel Inn, Salinas Departure from Laurel Inn, Salinas
7:15 AM Salinas Leafy Greens — harvesting and transplanting Mary Zischke
8:30 AM Salinas Strawberry Production — MB alternative trial lan Greene
11:15 AM Los Banos Melon Production & Food Safety Program Steve Wilson — Steve Patricio
12:00 PM Los Banos Lunch
12:30 PM Los Banos Honey Bees and Pollination Gene Brandi
1:00 PM Los Banos Leave for Walnut Grove '
2:45 PM Delta area IPM, in Pears and Cherries Robert Arceo—Chuck Ingels-Bob McClain
3:30 PM Delta area Vertebrate pests and conirol Roger Baldwin, UC Davis
4:30 PM Sacramento Arrive Sacramento — Heliday Inn/Amtrak Arrive Sacramento no later than 4:30 PM
4:45 PM Sacramento Arrive at Farm Bureau

93




QUESTION 1
1 What are the best ways for farmers, PCAs and commodity groups to

communicate the pest management issues of specialty crops to agency
personnel (USEPA, DPR, CDFA, RWQCB, Air Resources, NRCS?)?

QUESTION 2
2 Given diminishing resources of research and cooperative extension
personnel, suggest ways in which commodities should refine
partnerships and direct resources within agencies and/or universities
and colleges...

| QUESTION 3
3 What are the top 3 problem issues of specialty crop agriculture (in
CA?)? How should these be addressed?

QUESTION 4
4 How can communication at the ag/urban interface be improved?

QUESTION 5
5 What are five ways in which the farming community can improve
coordination with agencies to address environmental quality issues
related to specialty crop production (USEPA, DPR, CDFA, RWQCB, Air
Resources, NRCS?)?

QUESTION 6
6 What are the major misconceptions about agriculture held by the
general public? Suggest five specific ways to address.

QUESTION 7
7 Compare and contrast issues facing specialty crops versus major
crops {(corn, wheat, soybeans, etc.).

QUESTION 8
8 How does a globalized economy impact pest management issues and
decisions?

QUESTION 9
9 Do natural resources conservation and pest management fit together?
How? Any examples you can think of?

QUESTION 10
10 California and much of the southwest is currently under severe
drought conditions. It has happened before and will happen again.
What can be done to help reduce the impact of water shortages?

94



% 4
%

Commodity Coffee Summary (CLA, June 13, 2016)
EU Pesticide Regulation: The Next Big SPS Barrier by Craig Thorn, DTB Associates

Regulation under development by the European Commission (Commission) increasingly is based on
hazard assessment, with little consideration of exposure to any chemical. In Regulation 1107/2009, the
Commission made significant changes to its regulation of chemicals and for seven categories,
established a hazard-based approach to assessment for human health safety. Six categories of
chemicals were defined under a harmonized classification system, but the seventh, endocrine
disruptors, was added with the intention that the Commission would develop criteria for this category.

A risk-based approach to human health and environmental risk assessment is the approach taken by the
U.S. regulatory agencies. This risk-based approach evaluates the hazard from the chemical as well as
any exposure to it. In the European Union, the Commission supports a hazard-based approach that
takes into account only the intrinsic properties of a chemical, with no consideration of potency,
exposure, or beneficial effects. Any compound that is categorized as an endocrine disruptor in the EU,
when applied to a raw commodity, will be subject to significant trade barriers including rejection of the
commodity due to EU application of a default threshold for presence of such chemicals. This impact
could be imposed on agricuitural commodity exports (and potentially prepared foods), including for
animal feed.

Within the category of endocrine disruptor, at least 69 compounds have been identified that likely
would be adversely affected, depending on the specific criteria chosen by the Commission. We
recognize the potential trade issues identified as WTO/Sanitary and Phytosanitary effects, and also are
concerned about the time and resources needed to oppose an EU regulation based on hazard oniy.

On Wednesday, June 15, we anticipate the European Commission publishing the outcomes of years of
deliberation on criteria for identifying endocrine disruptors- when these criteria are made public, we
then will know the level of potential adverse trade impact on US exports to the EU. We encourage
stakeholders to reach out to appropriate legislators to inform about this concern- and be prepared for
further discussions and recommendations for next steps.

1156 15th St. N.W., Suite 400 Washington, D.C. 20005 < 202.296.1585 phone 202.463.0474 fax  www.croplifeamerica.org

95




YAV RIA Y T [

A I DAVIS
45| POSTHARVEST TECHNOLOGY
Maintaining Produce Quality & Safety

PLEASE HELP US ADVOCATE FOR A
NEW POSTHARVEST SPECIALIST!

In light of the recent losses to our team of Postharvest Specialists, we
are very excited that our department has submitted a proposal fora
new position, “Cooperative Extension Specialist in Postharvest Quality.”

This Specialist position will be responsible for statewide leadership in
advanced quality management systems for perishable horticultural
foods. Innovative integration of the principles of horticultural production
with postharvest biology would transect scales-of-production, import
and export markets, and international initiatives which include sensory
and nutritive quality and the critical issue of reducing food loss.

These requests for positions are highly competitive statewide, and we
need your support to advocate for filling this position next year!

Please write your comments in support of this new postharvest position
by July 11, 2016 using the following fink. Scroll to the bottom of the
page and add your comments. Thank you very much for your support!

Link to comments form from:

http://ucanr.edu/postharvestposition

UC Davis Postharvest Technology Center
(530) 752-6951 « postharvest@ucdavis.edu
http://postharvest.ucdavis.edu




Interpera 2017
Planning Committee: jacques Dasque, Luciano Trentini, Pauline Panegos, Amit Dhingra, Stefano Musacchi, Bob McClain,

Chris Zanobini, Bob Gix, Kevin Moffitt

Where: Wenatchee, WA USA - Wenatchee Confluence Technaology Center (Hotel block at the Comfort Suites next door)
When: June 15 -16 2017

Budget: $39,000
Attendee entrance fee expected to be $100 to $120 for the translations, the technical visits the gala dinner and the coffee

breaks etc. Possible attendance of 20 to 30 people from outside of the US. Perhaps 50 growers and researchers from the
us?)

Topics:
June 15" Morning Session 09.00 - Noon
Varieties and root stock
e New variety development around the world — panel of 4 -5 presenters 15 — 20 minutes each with questions at the
end
e  Ask presenters to address specifics such as:
1. What markets are being targeted

Best climates - or climate the variety was developed in
Any test markets planted or results?
10. Is it a club variety or a per tree royalty variety?
11. Resistance i.e. fireblight, scuffing, Mite, psylla
12. Consumer acceptance
e Overview and future of high density planting - EU yields per acre, density per acre, returns for land
s Effects of high density planning on worldwide production
s Harvest mechanization
¢ Integrated pest management successes
Afternoon Session 13.30-17.00
Consumer and Trade
e MCP- best practices and effects on consumer satisfaction
¢ How to increase consumption — marketing success stores
e Fresh cut pears
¢ Ripening to increase consumption
e Social media use to increase consumer awareness (Farm to fork - social media where the fruit comes
from)
= Who are the pear consumers around the world?
e Export trade flows
1. Potential new markets, fading old markets
e Health studies and benefits

2. What makes the offering special (What are its parents)

3. |Isit best eaten crisp or ripened

4, Harvest timing compared to Bartlett/Williams (a world standard})
5. Storage life

6. Fruit size {without thinning)

7. Yield

8.

9.

June 16* Field Trip
s Orchard tour
» Packing House Tour
* Ripening Rooms?

Possible sponsors
Post harvest suppliers = strong supporters (concentrated97.'estment).




Pace - Agro Fresh — Deco - Also include Major refrigeration suppliers

Packers: Stemilt/Rainier/Oneonta/Chelan Fresh/Washington Fruit are a few that come to mind. (They probably all have
private farm to fork presentations)

Crunch Pack and other sliced companies, canners

Paper suppliers, box makers, nurseries

Banking industry (Who are the key players?)

Farm Suppliers Witber Ellis — Chamberlin - NWW — GS Long Others?

Major product manufactures; Dow - Syngenta — Nichino — Bayer — Valent - Others?

(Nurseries $1,000, AgroFresh & Pace $5,000})

98



MENU

Apple and Pear Australia Limited (APAL) > Market development > Marketing > Hailstorm Heroes
pear campaign

Hailstorm Heroes pear campaign

APAL has developed a new pear campaign that encompasses two Hailstorm Heroes pear characters to help
promote fruit that may have been superficially affected during two hailstorms in Victoria last year when the
pears were growing.

GURY PEAR BATTLER PEAR

Storm damaged pears still taste great. Wmﬁmnmmw

Supporting Dur orowers Help owr growers win thelr
' Bn:'ma. d 10 keep growing next season.

Guru Pear and Battler Pear — part of the Hailstorm Heroes pear campaign.

Between November and December 2015, APAL managed a range of short-term marketing projects whilst
Horticulture Australia Innovation Ltd (Hort Innovation) secured a new dedicated person to manage the
apple and pear marketing program. During that time APAL developed a full pear campaign targeting the
following key message pillars: health and nutrition; snacking; versatility; product attributes; and
‘provenance. The campaign comes to life with pear characters who each tell a story.

99




In addition to the core campaign, APAL developed two unique characters, Guru Pear and Battler Pear that
‘are part of our Hailstorm Heroes team. These characters aim to tell the story of the hail storms that hit the
Goulburn Vailey and encourage customers to buy hail-affected fruit. All the creative work has been
completed under APAL's management and shared with pear growers in the Goulburn Valley.

Hort Innovation has now appointed Lisa Troy as the new Marketing Manager for apples and pears and the
execution of this campaign now sits with Horticulture Innovation Australia Ltd. APAL is still available for
media interview about the Hailstorm Heroes pear campaign and can provide graphics on request.

Packham |
- ....,..‘ Sy

- - : - =
 Westher domages ;‘ 7
prowts b bake gisad. m -
B dp aur grawers wn -
it Radtis B0 kel A
G T g MO Sty e LY
“' i .
S #
e "
3 N =
i I 9 i
[ = . =
Packaging example using the Hailstorm Hero Battler Pear.
Acknowledgement

This work was funded by Horticufture Innovation Australia Ltd using the apple and pear industry levy funds
from growers and matching funds from the Australian Government.

Tools & Resources

Keyword

100



CPAB Pear Import Report

2016 Import Season
May 18, 2016
SR TV TS o o | Number of 18
i Countfy of ZO.ng_m , | . Atrival Dgte I uUs Po;t of Entty ~ °.  Kilo Cartons
ARGENTINA 2/27/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 334,000
ARGENTINA 2/27/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 7,000
ARGENTINA 3/5/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 9,750
ARGENTINA 3/5/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 1,250
ARGENTINA 3/12/2016 Newazd - Elizabeth (N]) 1,500
ARGENTINA 3/12/2016 Tos Angeles - Long Beach 2,750
ARGENTINA 3/12/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 44,750
ARGENTINA 3/12/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 35,500
ARGENTINA 3/19/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 41,250
ARGENTINA 3/19/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,000
ARGENTINA 3/19/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 310,250
ARGENTINA 3/19/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 1,250
ARGENTINA 3/26/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 32,750
ARGENTINA 3/26/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 68,000
ARGENTINA 3/26/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 293,750
ARGENTINA 3/26/2016 Seattle - Tacoma 2,750
ARGENTINA 4/9/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 11,500
ARGENTINA 4/2/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 9,500
ARGENTINA 4/2/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,250
ARGENTINA 4/9/2016 Houston 1,250
ARGENTINA 4/9/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 11,500
ARGENTINA 4/16/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 1,250
ARGENTINA 4/16/2016 Houston 3,750
ARGENTINA 4/16/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,750
ARGENTINA 4/16/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 22,000
ARGENTINA 4/16/2016 Seattle - Tacoma 1,250
ARGENTINA 4/23/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 304,250
ARGENTINA 4/23/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,750
ARGENTINA 4/23/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 6,500
ARGENTINA 4/30/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 45,500
ARGENTINA 4/30/2016 Houston 1,000
ARGENTINA 4/30/2016 Seattle - Tacoma 5,500
ARGENTINA 4/30/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 25,250
ARGENTINA 4/30/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 45,500
ARGENTINA 5/7/2016 Seattle - Tacoma 2,750
ARGENTINA 5/7/2016 Newatd - Elizabeth (NJ) 1,250
ARGENTINA 5/7/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 6,250
ARGENTINA 5/7/2016 Houston 1,500
ARGENTINA 5/14/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 7,750
ARGENTINA 5/14/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 200,500
ARGENTINA 5/14/2016 San Juan (Puerto Rico) 2,500
ARGENTINA 5/14/2016 Houston 1,250
Argentina Subtoial 1,911,500
Bryant Christie Inc.

101



CPAB Pear Import Report

2016 Import Season
May 18, 2016
= ot ¥ g = Number of 18
Country of Origin Arrival Date |~ Us Po;t of Entry . | Kilo Cartons
2015 Season YID 1,525,750
CHILE 1/29/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 3,500
CHILE 1/29/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,250
CHILE 2/1/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,500
CHILE 2/1/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 2,500
CHILE 2/2/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 9,500
CHILE 2/4/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 15,000
CHILE 2/5/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 11,500
CHILE 2/12/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 15,250
CHILE 2/12/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 1,250
CHILE 2/13/2016 Philadeiphia - Camden 7,500
CHILE 2/14/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 20,500
CHILE 2/17/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 5,750
CHILE 2/18/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 13,500
CHILE 2/20/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 4,000
CHILE 2/21/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 3,750
CHILE 2/15/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 12,250
CHILE 2/24/2016 Tos Angeles - Long Beach 1,250
CHILE 2/27/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 13,500
CHILE 2/28/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 12,000
CHILE 2/29/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 19,250
CHILE 2/2972016 Wilmington (Delaware) 3,250
CHILE 2/27/2016 Newark - Elizabeth (N]) 2,750
CHILE 2/28/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 12,000
CHILE 2/29/2016 Wilmington (Delavware) 3,250
CHILE 3/3/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 32,000
CHILE 3/3/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,500
CHILE 3/5/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 500
CHILE 3/6/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 5,500
CHILE 3/8/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,250
CHILE 3/9/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 2,500
CHILE 3/10/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 6,500
CHILE 3/10/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 6,500
CHILE 3/13/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 9,000
CHILE 3/14/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 2,250
CHILE 3/14/2016 South Florida/Tampa 1,250
CHILE 3/15/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 14,500
CHILE 3/16/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,250
CHILE 3/17/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 4,750
CHILE 3/19/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,500
CHILE 3/21/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 2,750
CHILE 3/22/2016 Wilmington (Delawate) 2,250
CHILE 3/22/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,250
CHILE 3/22/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 2,250
CHILE 3/23/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,250
Bryant Christie Inc.

102




CPAB Peat Import Report

2016 Import Season
May 18, 2016

o e ) e | [ T, =3 s : .5 -+ | Number of 18
Countty of Otigin | ArrivalDate - | .-/ _US Port of En#y 5505 il UKdlo!Cartons
CHILE 3/24/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 3,250
CHILE 3/24/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 3,750
CHILE 3/25/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 5,750
CHILE 3/25/2016 Brooklyn (NYC) 1,250
CHILE 3/27/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 2,500
CHILE 3/27/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 20,250
CHILE 3/28/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 9,500
CHILE 3/30/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 3,250
CHILE 3/31/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 4,750
CHILE 4/3/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 1,250
CHILE 4/4/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,250
CHILE 4/4/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 21,250
CHILE 4/5/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 5,000
CHILE ) 4/5/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 5,500
CHILE 4/7/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 14,250
CHILE 4/7/2016 Brooklyn (NYC) 1,250
CHILE 4/8/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 1,750
CHILE 4/10/2016 Wilmington (Delaware) 1,250
CHILE 4/10/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 4,000
CHILE 4/10/2016 Philadelphiz - Camden 24,500
CHILE 4/12/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 2,500
CHILE 4/12/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 5,250
CHILE 4/12/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,500
CHILE 4/13/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 4,250
CHILE 4/16/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 3,500
CHILE 4/17/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 7,750
CHILE 4/17/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 24,250
CHILE 4/21/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 8,500
CHILE, 4/24/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 6,250
CHILE 4/24/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 306,000
CHILE 4/16/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 6,250
CHILE 4/17/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 7,750
CHILE 4/17/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 24,250
CHILE 4/21/2016 Wikmington (Delaware) 1,000
CHILE 4/23/2016 San Juan (Puerto Rico) 5,000
CHILE 4/24/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 6,250
CHILE 4/24/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 30,000
CHILE 4/26/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 6,250
CHILE 4/27/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 25,250
CHILE 4/27/2016 San Juan (Puerto Rico} 3,000
CHILE 5/1/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 750
CHILE 5/1/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 17,750
CHILE 5/1/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 1,250
CHILE 5/3/2016 Seattle - Tacoma 2,750
CHILE 5/3/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,500
CHILE 5/3/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 16,000
CHILE 5/3/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,500

Bryant Christie Inc.

103




CPAB Pear Import Report

2016 Import Season
May 18, 2016
I, a ey Numbet of 18
Country of Origin Arrival Date . | . - US.POIt of En;ry Kilo Cartons.
CHILE 5/5/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 3,500
CHILE 5/5/2016 Brooklyn (NYC) 1,250
CHILE 5/5/2016 San Juan (Puerto Rico) 3,000
CHILE 5/6/2016 San Juan (Puerto Rico) 250
CHILE 5/8/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 2,500
CHILE 5/8/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 23,500
CHILE 5/10/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 12,750
CHILE 5/10/2016 Seattle - Tacoma 1,250
CHILE 5/11/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 1,500
CHILE 5/12/2016 Brooklyn (NYC) 1,250
CHILE 5/13/2016 San Juan (Puetto Rico) 1,250
CHILE 5/15/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 2,750
CHILE 5/15/2016 San Juan (Puerto Rico) 2,500
CHILE 5/15/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 26,250
Chile Subtotal 765,500
2015 Season YI'D 907,250
NEW ZEALAND 3/26/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 2,500
NEW ZEALAND 3/26/2016 Houston 1,000
NEW ZEALAND 4/9/2016 Houston 1,250
NEW ZEALAND 4/16/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 1,000
NEW ZEALAND 4/16/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 1,000
NEW ZEALAND 4/23/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 1,000
NEW ZEALAND 4/30/2016 Seattle - Tacoma 2,500
NEW ZEALAND 4/30/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 2,000
NEW ZEALAND 5/7/2016 Los Anpeles - Long Beach 4,500
NEW ZEALAND 5/7/2016 Philadelphia - Camden 13,250
NEW ZEALAND 5/14/2016 Los Angeles - Long Beach 500
New Zealand Subtotal 30,500
2015 Season YTD 15,750
SOUTH AFRICA 2/27/2016 Newark - Blizabeth (N]) 2,750
SOUTH AFRICA 2/27/2016 Newark - Elizabeth (N]) 1,500
SOUTH AFRICA 3/12/2016 Newark - Elizabeth (N]) 1,250
SOUTH AFRICA 3/26/2016 Newatk - Elizabeth (N]) 1,250
SOUTH AFRICA 4/30/2016 Newark - Elizabeth (N]) 1,500
South Africa Subtotal 8,250
2015 Season YID 20,500
Australia Subtotal 0
2015 Season YTD 0
2016 Season YID 2,715,750

Bryant Christie Inc.

104




CPAB Pear Import Report

2016 Import Season
May 18, 2016

" Countey of Origin -

" Atrival Date

7./, US Portof Buey 77 |

‘Numbet of 18
- Kilp Cartons

2015 Season YTD

2,469,250

Bryant Christie Inc.

105




CPAB Pear Import Report
2016 Import Season

May 18, 2016
2,500,000
2,000,000 1,811,500

n

& 1,525,750

%,500,000 = ik

Q

)

¥

0

-

k]

]

-‘Eﬂ ,000,000 907,250

= " {766,500

500,000 i
0 0 15,750 30,500 20,500 g 250
o] . . s o sk | — . -
Argentina Australia Chile New Zealand South Africa
02015 Season Yield to Date 02016 Season Yield to Date

Bryant Christie Inc.

106




%¥E'C6 %6256 %L0°L6 %0796 %6096 %LE°96
OPv's8l’l  090°296  99L°€8S  P66°8LL  GLE'TZZ'V £60°699
€SL'219'0L 686'0.S'6L VRV'LLE'8L £12'0V8'0 986896l 8L1'ZTVI'LL
£65'208°LL 6V0'PPS'0Z 0LO'VEP'GL L02'6G1L9'LZ SOE1L69'0Z LIS'LIY'EL

9E8'6L8°El S8E°L62°9L 8.Z'26¥'PL 1LZ0'90P'9L 899°GLS°SL 0:8°¥PO'VL JorbSeLL 090496 | 991't8S  PE6'8LL  6LE'ZZZ'L  £60°699

0ZE9IT 980081 825202 BEL VBT BlZ Gar 0889EL 0 0 0 0 b3 0of

B0B'GYE  1€€'G06  9C2'ZE0'L  9E6'Z60°')  LL6'SBO'L  €IF'1L96 £55'8y £02'65 £66'c 728°2E 8vZ'L6 L'y

1#0'95 997'85 8£9'05 G99'Gy lz8'es Ly 0 0 0 0 0 0

£18'91z L92'vlZ  896°20Z  BEF'ELT  898'GEZ €026l 0 0 0 o 0 0

0LL'SIE'Z  LL1'9M'E  2L6'08L'T 089'8ZZ'c  lzeteR'z  Lee'oret o 8€6°L Zev'y 0s 689 626'S1

£€0'601'0L BIB'COV'LL 9¥Z'BLZ'0L £OS'08SLL 9l&'Lzi'ly 20e'149'6 [|iee'eelt  SIt'€06 L08'v/S  TZ¥O¥L  0SE'0EL'L  1LB'SPO

IS1'Z86°C  VO9'SPZ'Y ZEL'l66'Y OPI'CLZ'S  IE9°SLL'S L0098 |lo 0 0 0 0 0

[T A4 118592 T8CEIT Z069EE CIFTIE ZZ18e 0 0 0 0 0 0

S0E'49 162'c8 68S'€0L  £99'86 898°CLL  Z09'22 0 0 0 0 0 0

IPT'EI9'e  9S0'Z68'C Z9v'08S'Y 9lL'8.lv  182'069% ziL'eioy |lo 0 0 0 0 0

110102 ZL-1i0¢  TIZL0¢  FLEt0¢ SILPLOE  ObGL 11-0102  Z1110¢  E1-2loe  PL€l0¢  SIPLOZ  91-GLOZ

— dQHD mc__.__w_.:mm_ SWINJOA

%ZV'L6 %L06 %86'56 %SZ°S6 %5 1°26 %PZ'SH 96E'PES'ZL STEOLL'SE ZILL'PLG'EL LZ0'IZO'SL 6VLSSe'Pl LLLI'GSIE'EL

%0000F %0000l 0000F %OOO00F %8666 %806 66 050l 980081  ©25.0¢  GEL¥Bl 18158l 09891

%.8'v6 %EZ 6 %Z9'66 %20 L6 %09°L6 %S55'66 952268  0€9'606  £08'820'F ¥I¥'090'L €09'vE6  9SL'JG6

%0000l %0000l  %0000F  %0000L  %0000L  %00°00L L¥0'9S 99Z°85 8€9'05 599'GY 12828 bbb

%0000l  %00:004  %00°00L  %00°00L %0000l  %Q00°00) £18'912 192°vIZ 895'/0z  GEV'ELEZ  BOR'GEZ  €0Z'E6l

%0000L %2286 %¥8'66 %0000} %8666 %866 [oiz'sles 62180V OvL'9.2'7 0£9'9ZZ'€  8CTEER'T  296'LZ0'C

%G.'88 %80°Z6 %.E'V6 %G5 €6 %7868 %ZE'CH6 9r1'2.6'8  €OV'66K'0L SPP'SPIE  LyL'PEG'OL 995L6B'E  S8Y'GZ0'6

%00°00F  %00°00b  %00°00L  %00°00L  %00°004  %00°00% 151'286'c  ¥99'9¥Z'Y  ZEL'l66'F  OWL'CLEZ'S  IC9'SLL'S  LOO'Z9C'Y

%0000F %O000F %0000F %0000F %0000F %0000L |IS0zerz 11859 18z€le  I0BOEE  Tivvie Iz iee

%0000k %00°00L  %00°00L  %00°00F  %00°00L  %00°00L §0E'49 162'¢€8 685'€0L  £99'86 898'0LL  209'2L

%0000l %0000  %00°00L  %0000L  %00°00L  %00°00L 1vZ'CL9'C  980'268'€  ZOP'08S't OIL'GLL'v  J6Z069T ZIL'CLOP

gL eunp g sunr L aunp [+] m:-q. G aunp £ sunp 01 sunp g aunp i sunp g aunp G aunp ¢ aunr
11-0002  ZIEl02  TT2h0Z  ViLEw0¢  SL-PLOZ  91-G10Z [1-010Z2 ZTI-1H0¢  T12il0¢  PIELO0Z  SIPI0Z  91GLOZ
| aje ¢l PaAoy Juadled B_WAE. paroy doin

"suosess snoinasd ay) Joj podey dosd [euly 8y} uo paseq Buluewsas swnjoa pue ajep o} paacus doud Jo Juedssed oy} S]OSYS) MOj9g EjEp Bl |

(910Z ‘¢ aunr) g1# podey peulquion
MBIAIDAQ Juawaaop dosn

peAGH) Jusdlag
Bujujewoy |ejoL
PeAol |eyoL

doig jejo),

el gng
1930
spay
[9qoeg
ooy
asog
nofuy

|01 qng
w—uﬂﬂ Mmm
Bepreg poy
nepieg

07

1
[ejol gng
42410
spoy
19)2eg
8o
asog
nofuy

oL qng
5peY 415
Nopseg pay
pepseg

61#Ncdar do1d



307wo?) pay “ofeBuy Py PIOD §J0{ARY, WEGHHORJ *SPNJOUT SIBOF IHUM JOTO 4

(#b¥) spusreainby xog prepumg ur sam3y v

_ _ !

615221 | £60'699 0 0 | 61E°TTT1 4 £60°699 0¢ LIEY 0 62681 LI8SHY TTIVIIVAV TVLOL
%60'F6 | % LE'96 %00°001  %00°001 | %S1°T6 %¥T 6 %386'66 %5566 %00°00T  %BE66 %IEE6 QdddIHS % TV.LOL
(2a0qe U1 papnjouy)
beSep0’s | €81997'9 | TETISET  O98'GEE'T | S6E'ESLy | IS6PI6T  08T9 199%2€ 0 9TLCTTT  ¥8TBLEE peddrys v'D
936°89¥°61 SLLTPLLY 100°29€%  TLI'STIOr | 6FE'ESEdT LLL'SLE'ET  1L6'LLT 951456 £0Z'€61 T96°T20°C  S8¥'ST0'6 paddms TVIOL
06F°979°TT IT0'LOOZT ¥RZ'OTE'E  LELOSO'E | 1£5°878°8 LTL089'8  S6TL¥I LRO'T69 £00°FLI LID96ET  STETLTS u_.ﬁueoﬁ%
BEPFESTY TTOILE'T 8E0°LYL L61°L69 | 6IE°LLY +86°€S9 08£°8 6PLLE HzT P69°LLT LS6°LTE speue) T
TO6°TETE SLG'STLT 6L59F1 G0E‘CET | SE6'PES'T 96E6LS'T  I9E°TT SSLELE 68£°€1 6EL°LTT TST'682°T 00TXa
TLEBP] SS6°8Z1 698°101 6LT°T01 | PITLI 980°LT 9LE 610°T 0 6LE TIEST Nzerg
PRTLR6°T SIR'60S'T I€T°sL £59'3T | 0SH°568°1 PRSPEP'L  65S°01 95681 LO9E £E€10T1 6EL°0TT°1 a10ys JJO
| | 4 | —
ELLSLLLYG _ 6LTVIS'Y | TETISE T 098°5EL’] _ FI9°18F°C _ L¥O°E61°S  08T°9 S68°bTE ] TETOPTT  0S9°179°¢ (2r0qe U1 papnaun) "yD
8L7°319°0Z LETIrST | 10095 TLIEI0Y | 1v9zos'st | OL8WHOPT  100%SLI £L¥°'196 £0T°c61 168°0¥0°¢  ZO£'1L9°6 areg o1 N0NYIRg
(saxoq pasjoed “smnba)
LTOEL 0 0 0 LTOEL 0 0 0 0 0 0 2500
_ _ _ (e500] Sapnpour)
SOE 16902 * LLETIF'ST _ I00°L9EY  TLIEIOY _ 899°GLE°ST _ OL8'FFO'FT  100°BLY £L¥°196 £0Z'c61 168°000°c  TOE'1L9%6 meyoed pajoafold o],
[e1e], 18ag _ [er0] Jag 7 & dMm
ysary MmN YSAAT AN TVIOL mopmy | maq REM TVIOL 8m0 uo)
stoz-#10z | oroz-sioz ILERC ) s10Z-rLoZ TEod Il ‘29 Ofjatod  nofwy pay 200D osog nofuy
910 ‘¢ sunf
61 "oN wodoy Vi AVM TYNOLLVNYALNI 98 Z8¢h
[ a8eq

TILITANOD dvid HSTI A



¢ 0 [} ] 0 0
%00°00T %00°00T %00°061 %00°001 %00°001 200001
0 0 0 0 o 0
B98°CET £02T°€61 w6K'T 956'6 8STEIT LKLY
695512 £00°FLE 80L1 6056 S56°F01 BIBLE
SZE'I PoT'T 0 99 586°1 €61
FARVAS 68E°EL 8L 0 660°€ 2056
0 0 0 0 0 0
LST'I L09'E 0 19¢ opT'E 0
0 0 0 0 i 0
BOR'GET £0TC61 6v'T 9€6'6 88211 LBY'LY
0 0 0 0 0 0
$09°6€T £0T°661 wr'T 9€6°6 SETENT LBY'LY

ETrioe TVIOL LITEL7Y RFEOIAN BIEn[o)-PIA PIIPN
689 6I6'81 LY 9ET'1I 6IT'S [
%86'66 %RE'ES %ES'G6 %0686 WIS EE %00°001
905°590°T 9ZL'STTT vi1'98 ERR'RET 661'589 0€5°591
SET'E68'T T96°170°E L6R'ILS §95'000°T GIF990°T 130°¢RE
989°10€7 LI0'96€'T 917 'L6Y 8IS 16L 16£°L58 T6B'EPT
TLR0LT Pe¥LLT THFPS ¥SZT'I01 TIn'9g 988'SE
44321 BELLTT 1ot 0£2'99 7896 9PL'SL
082 6.8 0 891 1nz 0
8Lzl £€1°02Z1 8Z1°01 S6E'SE £50°LY L88°LT
1£6'690'T fr4qu Al $SE'LS 610'252 8TE069 0£5'591
LT6'E6ST 168'000°C 1LEFLS T0LTTQT 8ES'TLO'] 180°€8E
0 0 0 i 0 0
L76'C68'T 162°0P0°E 1L8'pLS TOL'TIOT 8 1L0'T 180°€8€

(93304 TVLIOL FumEx IR B PN PIOJ9

0s€'0£1'1 LIg'SHY 8rT'01 ST0'96§ FS6E n

%rR68 YW%IE'E6 %886 Y%rR'L8 %96'86 %00°001

LIS'ESE'E PBTRCEE 660051 NGSLT'T YLZ'TTOT 0

995'166'6 §8K'SZ0% F09'688 S0L°E0E'Y 088°65L'E T6T'8L

opa'LTH'C STLTLTS ZESIEL T08'PLY'T B6T'6H0T PLLYL

GOE'¥PE LS6'LTE 1L8°7L EZ6'EFT £9P°LLT 0

60£TRI'T ET'68TT L65FE PTE'EIT'[ SZEELOT 906°LT

zIL'9l TIE'ST 0 9Z's 8H00Z 0

085'1TS'T SEL'OILT £28°%¢ 96£'91S 918°¢0§ ZI9EE

108'886'¢ 059°129°€ 6607091 EEL'G6E'T 8T8°T96°C 0

PRI'LLO'TT WL 1L9'6 £$8°E68 £EL'GORY PZFG6L'E Z6T'8L

ZEL'PY 0 0 u 0 0

LG IZI'IT 0£'1L9% €SR'E68 £EL°668'Y pIre6L'e T'8L

STFI0T AVLIOL LITELT o TP M SN PIA PO
7oy 910z ¢ 2unf SE94-TETL6 MO HNNMAVATIN
Jose VHLINS AVA TYNOLLYNYALNI 98 Z85)
61 "oN noday dory AALLINNOD ¥vVad HSHHA

s|qE|eAY

paddigs o [EI0L

paddigs v'D

paddiyg (w0
snsamoq paddnyg
BpenE)) paddnyg
oaxapy paddnyg
[zery peddmyg
10450 paddig

{aa0qe popapzn)  aFeio)g YD

oJB(] 0} INOHSRJ

0300 P8 ‘ambo s B8007]

neyIeg |BJO ], paypalosg
TOTNOS

aquqEAY

paddiyg 9 moL
peddiys “y'D
paddyyg @10

onsamo( paddigg
epewe]) paddyg
oopxepy peddmg
fizerg poddmyg
a10q5pQ paddmg

(onoqe popujsat)  aSEIONG YD)

SFE(] 03 J0N2Eg

soxnq ps amba up 38007

moyIsg [ejoL, paalog
o504

ageliEAY

paddrys o oL
peddiys “vD
paddpyg (w10

susauro(y paddmg
speme)) paddnjg
oapapy paddig
Tzeig paddmg
aoysgQ paddms

(ea0qe p2pps)  93eInS V'O

E(] 0} NOYTR]

taxeq s ambam - 3300]

moxdEg ¥y, pagafolg
TIOINV

109



il 0 0 0 il S|E|BAY
946666 %00°00T %00°001 %000 3600001 %00°001 paddyg o 0L
0 0 1] 0 0 0 paddys v'o
SrFSL LOT'SP 56 1] LET'BE 86H'T padduyg g0
SEL'EO BIT9E 98"y 0 EEE0E 601 ansawro(] paddmg
80L°01 732 998 0 T6's 68 epeue)) poddnys
878°1 168 0 0 168 0 ooy peddmg
0 204 0 0 ¥z 0 [ezegl peddmyg
LLL'T ¥ () 0 L¥8 0 ssoysyQ peddpg
0 1] 1] 0 ] 0 (3aoqe popmmu)  aBeac§ YD
ZEF'8L LoT'sy sE'S 0 LSTRE R6H'1 aJe(] 03 OB
[+] 0 il ii L] 1] saotoq pis 'munba wr PHOO]
SV'8L LOT'S¥ b3 %7 0 LST'8E 8611 moydeg fEpo], papafoiy
ST-¥10¢ TVIOL FWHEL e E LI PO FT1AE03
P76 LIg'y [ £20°F x4 0 ANEREAY
%0916 %66 %00°001 %05'26 %5666 %00°001 poddrig o, TIOL,
TLEFEE 199b2€ 00zo1 TH0'v1 LIFO0E 0 peddiys y'D
£99°%66 981°L56 090'0¢T GOT'89T T80'81§ PI6°0E paddpyg jeyeg,
066'269 L80°169 9ZI%TI 201102 PIL'SHE 56061 onsewog paddmyg
696'CH GPLLE S10% 656°0T 165°1T ¥8¢ epeue) paddmg
SELHE SSLLE 60L 89€°L 178°st LSS'E conap paddmg
[ 610'1 0 98¢ £89 0 g paddnyg
60V 12T oPs'681 019'6 SEE'SY £TLVLN SLE'L w0y paddmg
7880ZY S68°rZE 00Z°01L 0¥l 169°00€ 0 (auoqe popra)) o104 YD
9T9°LS0°T £LYT96 090°0F1 £81'ZLT 9IEBIS 16'0€ 21R(T ©) InoxIEd
S6T8T 0 1] 0 0 [} oxoq pis ambs w9500
TI6°5R0'T ELFI96 090°0rT C8TULT 9IE'RTS rI6°0E moRIeg (Mol pasafesg
ST¥I0T TVIOL FWDEY BDEIA TFIoIPR TIOTNY a1
gofeq 910g "€ sung SESHTTILE Y0 ADINVMIIN
Jose VHLINS “AVA TVNOLLYNYALNI 35 T8EY

61 "aN Hodey do1)

HALLINWOD dvad HSHEA

110



ot

SONT0T) PIY ‘O19FuY Py PIOL) 740148 L, "WNPI06] SIPNJC LB JRIIAL SH(I0),

[ 0 0 0
%k6 66 %EL'66 %SL 66 2%00°001 %00°001 %00'001
0 STES §ZES 0 1] 0
S0L'LP T0L'SP 4 6EF'6 05T'] 098'ST
L8L'TT L6T'TE £1ZZ1 £01°g 61 0F0°01
Z0Z'1 0 0 0 o 0
£v6 €LY 0 [+ 182'¢ T65°T
)} 0 0 0 0 0
ELL'TT E5'8 o 9EE’l 896°C 82Ty
0 $ZE'S $Ze's i} i 0
EEL'LY TEL'sy EVTTI 6E¥'G 061'8 09851
0 0 0 0 0 0
£ELLY eL'sy Fagard] GEF'G 0618 09851
STFI0T VL BoEL FPETa THWEN-PIN PRIPRN
0 0 o 1} 0 0
%007001 %00°001 96007001 %00°001 %007001 96007001
0 556 556 0 0 0
LI8'TS T 95L'9 T€H°T 912 18TT1
9168t 99E'sE 0£L'9 ETH1 61£'61 Po6'L
098 SST'T 9z 81 988 344
1162 0z6'e 0 1] £E6 [86'
o 0 0 0 0 o
ov1 oL9 0 0 S0s 221
0 $56 556 u 0 0
LZ8'2S r' 95L'9 1E41 £$9'1Z 18211
0 0 0 u 0 0
LI8'78 T 95L'9 I£F'1 P9I I8Z'EE
ST-FTOT AT JupEx Rpwuegy POIPPI
[} 0 0 o 1 0
%00'001 9400001 %000 9400001 200001 %000
o 0 i 0 i 0
PEO'SS 1s0'op ] ZLE'Sh 6.9 0
085S Pov'er 0 sTL'TY 6L9 0
PLY'1 8be 0 8¥E 1] 0
019°1 L't 0 LLY'T 0 0
zn (411 [+ fad s 0 0
9E ols 0 ols 0 0
] 0 0 0 [t} ¢
PEOSS 150'9K 0 TLE'SE 6L9 0
i 0 o [} i 0
PE0°6S 150‘9y 0 TLE'Sy 6L9 0
[3e2074 TVI0L LI 17 SRR A PO
yoBed 9107 ° sunf SEOP-TCTL6 WO ATINY MTIN
Jose ¥ ALINS ‘AVM TYNOLLYNUHLNI IS 788

61 "oN hodey doxy

HALLINWOD dviad HSTH ]

qBEAY

paddiyg 9% [0,
paddiyg v)
paddiyg (woy,
onisewmog paddmg
zpeus)) paddmg
oopa peddps
nzeg poddmyg
a10qs paddyg
(asoqe poparony)  oFeroNg YD
ale(] a) JoxRg
sou0q e “mnba - A5G0
moxdRg [Ep0 g paafong
an

JAqepesy

paddmgg o5 TeleL
paddmg vD
paddiyg oL
sysawaq paddpg
spEme)) paddn[s
osfRapy paddnis
Treag] paddig
asoysgO paddms
(anoqe popornl}  aZeINg v
HB(L 01 ORI
Box0q TF Ambo w500
1B0Eg (510, parsafosg
Tanoas

AquQEAY

paddigg 9, moL

peddiyg "y

paddyyg oy,
onsawng paddiyg
epeui) paddg
capap peddnyg
izesg paddmyg
a1ogsrQ pedduys

{eange peprpour)  2FwI0)g V')

BT O) IMONZE]

g s ambam 98007

m0RdE] 1810, pardafoag
ATHOINOD

111



PO UOSWILT) PUB TOSKIN) PR WSNIE P SOPUM DOSWLDERIE,,

(] a i ] 1] L] AYslEAY
%00°001 9400001 %00°001 %00°001 %00°001 %007001 paddiyg 9 oL
0 LES'D i 9t 1809 0 peddiyg w0
TP L2218 £69' (¢ 0=l SOT'9ET 618'ST paddigg 1oL
ELI°0ET 799°01T Urs 60S¥0T TI5's8 oLI's1 ansaTI(T paddrys
IPI°LE PILSI 081 096'¢ ¥LE'G 0 epeue) paddmg
ZOT'ET 07701 0 LOO'S LILY 9%+ ooy paddmg
0 z 0 0 T 0 irzesg] padduis
950y 619'%r It L8 10£'9€ €51 asogsyO paddms
0 LESD 0 9%k 1800 0 (oaoqe popniom}  aBRI0)G "Y'
LY'PIE Phigi 4 £69°S 019'¢TI SOL'9ET 61861 aje(] 0} JN0YITg
0 ] 0 0 0 Q sanoq pg "Amibs m S5O0
LUYIE LTTI8Z £69°C OI9ETT SOT'9E1L 6I8'ST MoRdBg [HOL paleg

STFI0C VIOL TP ESTEILTETTY PG wr NOBITAAVIS
B350, PUR PO AT BWE)) ‘PIOD) PR PO 1500 ‘WORESUAS P SOPNIRYE NORRE B,
8 0 0 ¢ 0 i AqBREAY
%00°001 900001 2007001 %00°001 %00°001 %000 paddiyg of @01
959°€[ SER'S 0 gER'S 0 0 paddis vD
208°011 09'TL 66TP ' 12T ] paddiyg 0L
¥IF'96 £88'%9 LST'Y 96538 Z60°T [ agsamog paddmg
5L Ly fa obs'E 6ET 0 speme) paddyg
EI9F £50°T 0 £50°1 0 0 oorxay peddmg
7981 88 0 286 [ ¥ [z peddmyg
Lz 6P6'E 0 6961 0 0 aoysgo paddms
959°ET £E8% 0 SER'R 0 0 (aa0qe papoiw))  28RI0IE YD
858'011 w0YTL 662°% TLO'9Y 1€2' 0 2] 0} MOYIR
V] 0 ) 0 [} 0 ssxoq pie amba w - B3007F
898°011 09'TL 66T 7L0'99 jLrad 0 meydeg [BIo], pasaforg
ST-FIDZ AVIOL [T TETuem BIqWRI0)-PIAl [T =7 *IIT1Lavi aad

0 0 [} (] 0 ¢ AqEBAY

%00°001 %00°001 %00°001 2%007001 %00°001 %00°001 poddiyg o, 101,

£05°28Z°1 09R'GEET 00861 168995 £91'6¥L 0 poddws 'y

LET'069° UT'EI0Y $L6'6TS 291'SL0'T TECPTEN 001°L8 peddiyg jEre],

TLE'16F'E LEL'0SO'E O81'SkY ZPI6LE"T £IL'$96 0785 opsewog] paddiyg

Lraga ] LET*L69 65TTL TTTELE PSLTHT £96°01 epeue)) peddnys

Z6T'6L1 90E'SECT B609 £T6'TL 61Z°0F 99091 oomapy paddnyg

968°6Z1 6LZ' 101 [+ POLOE 1521 0 [zeag paddmyg

ISELE £59'87 [1as FACKA TEL'€T 698°T aloysyO paddiyg

£05°78Z'T 098'SEET 00861 L68°95¢ £9T°6bL 0 (ornqe popuou))  aFRX0)G YD)

L6T'069'F ZLIEN0'F BLGSTS O1°6LOT TEEFZET 001'L% aje(] 0 InoyIeg

0 0 0 0 0 0 saxoq e anba w9500

LET'069'F TLI'ETO'Y 8LE'STS T9I'SL0'T TE6'PTET 00r'Le moyaeg ;e paoafong
50T TVLOL LT TEIORI A PRI LITILUVE NIduJ

910Z ‘g sunf SEQF-TTELG MO ADINY MTIN
Jose V¥ ALINS ‘AVM TYNOLLYNYILNI IS Z8Ep
yndayf dox)) [eg/muumg HALLINWOD dvad HSTUA

112



TO0°LOE'Y NEP 0 1303

LEV'STI'S
SOL'61
VET'ET
LLO'YE
198'95
£67'95
$96'69
¥6'T6
1THLEL
£8ZI51
SOT'ECI
£75°88
SSHOET
104641
LEEPLI
SFI°LY1
£55°H0T
199'€ELT
ZOV'08T
66L'E9E
600967
LLV'S6T
85C'POE
081°4LT
07T
£06'FET
629°0ZL
FET'60T
€6C6LT
0L9°8¥1
£66'68
HISAINS
ST+

obL'ETIT'S TEELGE'Y
8Z0°L £95°Z1
890°0E 085'ET
VLAY 969'0E
Z80°16 SPPRS
6T8°CL S1L'SL
0£E'6T1 60801
19001 102°88
899°0k1 LEFTZL
ZS1°191 £02'8ZT
EF1°s6 87928
£09°101 199°98
T#8OFI £1Z'TTI
8I8°L91 095° 1LY
S00°9P1 +O1°261
795°181 681°261
978°7IT 960°Z1¢
8h6'8LT 49 'Y (4
S6EDLT 669°€LT
§17'89% PIERET
168°91E £1690€
BTL'OEE 4+ 2314
16¥'69C 1T96LT
I5¥'8ET ST0VOE
SL8'L0E 90p'9TE
162'992 996°C7EE
£69'552 0ET°08Z
ZE0'SHT 668°181
PSH'O81 SELCT
05Z'L8 ETELR
6LY'TS 08581
FRWaNS ey
PI-l €1-Z1

SLNIWAIHS TTVAAITAINNS NOLONIHS VA ¥ NODTIO

0
2007001
£69PPE'T
pLL'SRO'Y

TOEITE

S69'FPE'T
pLLSROD
¢

PLL'SRO'Y

TooLTE
mpaeg

0
%00°001
SER'S
209°TL
SN
LZ1'r
£60°1
3¢
661
$E8'8
209TL
i
TY'IL

e

=

4]

%00°001
098'5EE"T

TLIEIO'Y
LECOS0E
L6T'L69
S0E'SEN

6LT'T01
£59°8T

098'SEE'T

LI'EI0'Y

0

TLIETO'P
EpEg

[ =515

ayEp 01 [830)
B -
924 - 97
637 - 61
a2~ ZI
Pi-g
B[ - 67
e - 77
wer - g
wer - g
wef - [
%e(1 - §Z
23( - 81
-1
%e(1 - b
AON - LT
AON - 0Z
AON - €1
AON -9
PO -0E
WO - €T
10 -91
BO-6
©O-T
dag -z
deg - g1
dag- 1
dag-p
Sny - gz
Bay -1z
Sny - ¢1

JPpUR TEaA

Jqepesy
paddnyg o oL
poddryg v
paddyys jepe),

“epeue)) paddmg
oapop paddnjg

izaig poddmys
auoysyy() paddnyg

(aaoqu papmpour)  2FRICIS "Y'D

aIB(] O} INOYORE
oxoq s Ambo @ 3500

Inaeg 1oL papafoag

TIVIOL

SE9LTTL6 WO ALINYMTIN V TLINS "AVMA TYNOLLYNYH.INI I8 Z8Er

009 1B -
910t 921 - 92
088°L 934 -61
1£0'%T qed-71
Z06'SE ged-<
Z8Z'9¢ uef - 67
L1868 uef -7z
000°601 uef -
ZEO'ETI ey -g
£80°c8 uef-|
SLO'LB (-7
¥L9'86 2a(1 - 81
BEG'TEL - 11
£8Z°091 % -
YZETTI ADN - LT
S0FBLL AON - 0T
ESL1TT AON - £1
962'3€T AON - g
HTTLT RO -0¢
PIL6ET 1BO-€T
PP ILE »O-91
PLVILT »O-6
LOI‘12Z PO-7
9ZE£'6ET dog-¢z
1612 dag-g1
8KZS81 dag- 11
$66°081 dag - ¢
£P171ST dny - gz
100'6E1 foy -1z
08t°L01 Sny - 41
FSudgs SUIpOY IR
91-§1
saxeq plepurlg mmapealnby
0 0 0
%00°001 %00°001 2%00°001
661°96Z"1 TETTSET LESY
LEDCIIS 100°L9¢'F LTT'I8T
GE6LIBE FETOLEE 99017
6IT'LLS SE0'LIL FIL'ST
L96°961 GLS"9FI 0ZTO1
BSL'IET 698°101 z
FE8'I6 I€T'SL 629'FF
651°9671 TETTSE'T LES')
LEOETT'S 100°L9€'y LTTIRT
V] 0 1]
LEYSIT'S 100 L9E°y LIT'IRT
IVIOL =
ST TNVED TOrLIeg
9107 ‘gouny  jose
1oday dod)) jjegewmng

HILITAWWOD dvdd HSEHd

13



SBI'0TH'T  TS6LEE

PITRLY 9L0°¢

£8L'01 0961
8ES'H9 85.°9T
£I1T1 £6T
619'€E 899°C

8L9'507 TLR'ST
ore 129 ¥TESRT

£E80VBE'T  poI'ZHE

107499 080°'LY

Ziv'o 18€
£E0TH 00L0Z
I2F'11 ¥81
820'ZT 880y

O LLT 0ET'61
ZI6'6LY 1£9°052

EES'TOE'T  6E0°Z8E

oBF 168 619

POTHI £86'C
€08 1€ LEFFI
$90'9 86
1ET¥T £8+'1

B0EPET 8887C
9ES'ElS 981°BLT

S6YTVET  pLOBLY

SELIRS $£8'69

966'5Z 065'€l
£96°ZS LOR'TY
$89°€ Lyl
99l 8517

LTLLPT S8LTE
9L5'EIS TEGLIE

BLEGOTT 186409

STTISE'T  SO8'LIT

08¥b1 LLE'S
9E6'9 £6L'1
99T 0

0£0°LL ££9°7

Z96'TLT TILYE
¥60'SH9 190°Z5E

FEZ'S80°T TVIOL
BET'ELY [Ted/pummns
£Z88 A 3T
08L'LE nofiry pey
0Z8'TI SpI0OLO])
156°0€ soImosy
908°6RI osog
916'SEE nofiry
FIOUTUTT OL PIOTRITT
6BR°THO'T TYIOL
121°L68 R4/ Bunng
1609 dA ST
€E£°1Z nofuy pay
LETTL apioa0]y
Or6'LT 231m0))
918381 asog
162622 nofoy
PIOZ/LATT OL PIOTST/OT
¥65°0Z6 TVLOL
HE6ZS ed/ommwng
1228 A OST
opE'LT nofiny pay
L96°S 3PIOSUO])
8FLZI ORI
0zZF'TIL osog
OSE'SET nofry
FLOUYTIOL OL PIOLTIAT
618°L98 TVIOL
£88°CIS [E4/Pmums
99£°21 M ST
85T°01 nofuy pay
8ES°E SpIoaTn)
]R0°p1 20Tmosy
Zp5'sIT ssog
¥19'561 nofiry
PIOZOL/0T OL FIOT/LTE
S66'F05°T TV¥1OL
ETPEEL'T fedpenmmg
£05'8 dA ST
Er1's nofiry pay
9P9'T 3p103UCT)
L6E'PL sammagy
0S8'LYT ssog
£E0°E6T nofry
PI0T/97/6 OL DOV

[ L

¥ EpEIE])

NOSVHS ST-+10Z

T -tofeg

668'8EET 0Z0'+SE 618426 T¥10L
191°00¢ £48°7 BI£°L6E fed puums
6EE8 sis $99°L dA 95T
yTr'es £60'97 I££°L8 nofiry psy
£99'C 0 §99°T aproouc)
L59°0E LT EI6'LT aoTmes
90%°00Z 06L°TZ 9T9'LLT ssog
LVT'EID $L8°867 TLEFIE nofwy
STOTOT/IT OL STOTL/TT
SOBEPE'T GIR'BFE 9EG'F66 TVIOL
0FS0IE $Z9'9Z 9I6'E8 [[BA2uumg
LET'ET 009°5 LS5°L dM oSTI
L00'6L $10'62 Z66'6F nofiry pay
LEOS 6 886'L ap1ooTa)
¥6T1Z 985‘L 80L61 SORUOD)
ES0°PLT £097T 0SFIST asog
LIL'LES L E9T STEYLT nofuy
SIOZ9/TT OL ST0TYZIOT
POR'OTE'T 9L 'SPE 814186 TV.IOL
LEI'Z19 0198 LyS'E9s | ]
0101 g 2956 M 98I
0EL°TS 1£9°S2 660°LT noluy pay
FZR'E 0 ¥IR'E 9p10DUOT)
95281 £L7 £86°L1 oo
0L FPT 9EI'ST PEF'OZI 9s0g
LIE I8y $H0'8HT 69Z'EET nofny
STOT/ET/OT OL STOTOTAT
TTETEI TEE'LIE 0L5°65L TVIOL
185°c6¥ zve'os SEITHY [[edemums
LLES L9L 0198 dM ST
620°6Y £55°vE aL¥PI nofry pay
sTL's 69% 95T's apIoone]y
SLITI $€8 [ aammosy
8LL'BIT 9Z1°0¢Z 759'86 msog
LEL'EYY 099°65T L60°P81 nofuy
S10T/6/0K QL SY0T/92Us
ZERREOT 06Z°F95 295" v6F1 TViIOL
YEYTZT'T 918081 B18%E0°1 IR umung
ET6'8 ¥It'1 605°L dm TSI
SIz'IT STY'L 065°ET nofry pay
£86°S ¥6T 689°s aprosne])
EPLTL €497 00T°TI aoMmo])
STT'EFT 0£E°ET 988°611 osog
SE1vb9 89T°EVE 0LG'00E nofiry
STOUST/G OL Y
™oL 00X, EWoq
“FepeE)

NOSVHS 91-510Z

odxa 101 SRS TR POPATIUE ST BPRUR]) 4

SHVHd TTVIAAIWINNS ANV SEVEd YHINIM 40 INAWAAO HALLYIVYINOD
J2PUNLO ) TER] YsaL]

910Z/€/930 Y
61 'ON bodoy doxy

14



696°900°T LLP'81 36¢'778 TVLIOL
660°0p1 0851 (314 44 [[ed/Puumg
[ a4 0 69%'T M SN
65¢'ss 6ET'L TS nofwy pay
65T 0 651 8posue))
056'8 916'7 YEG'D 20nu0])
8I8REZ LzL'se 160°E0Z asog
616095 601°L¥T o18'sly nofiry
9I0TELL OL $10Z/ON/T
BIZZST'T 884681 0EF'Z96 TVIOL
'L 9 910'zZZT e/
199°¢ L09'T o'y M I
LTP'T8 ¥ET'S E61'LL nofuy pay
L80°T LOE'T 08L SPIOTOY
986'L1 OLKFT ors'sT VMO
THZ'6ET e 0TI'LIT 930¢]
£6L'T85 THLST 1SL'STh nofry
9IOTLST/T OL 910T/TN
808'69L L6651 158'609 TVIOL
8SITLI ¥LT PRRILI [fe1/murmg
806'T 0 2061 dM 38T
69£ES &T'ol 160°k nofiry psy
S18l TET ¥REL JpIOOUC))
FESIT [%] LESTT L]
1Zz'ovl 6Z0'TT Z6I'CET 080¢
ETL08E PS1'8EN 655°TPT nofiry
9I0Z/T/T OL STOUGLTT
$8E780°1 ZI1'6¥2 €LT'EER TVIOL
E19°0EL S0TT 0¥’ [B42Pmmms
331 SLS°T 086 dm ST
£519L zZn's1 TET'SS nofiry pay
PLG'E 1 ELE'E SPIOSUQT)
299'ze 0£TT TEFIT SLLOD)
9EL'TTE 83E°81 89€'€51 os0g
zL9'ZES 169°90Z 186°6T€ nofuy
STOLRI/LT QL SI0Z/5/TT
SSHOTI'T £60'192 9Tr'658 TYILOL
409'28T ELY'E YEL'SLY [/ semumg
9€8°0L 606°T LT6R dM 98I
6£9'%8 7656 18055 nofiry pay
LPETL 34 G68°11 apaoouc)
PLLOE 344 1£€°0E 2omme)
96¢"181 LLT'LT [ 154! osog
091°81¢ Te€'861 6T8°61% nofiry
SIOTP/TT OL SIOZ/TLT
EIL Tod T, SIEeWag
W epeney

NOSVHS 91-510Z

poda J08 ‘aysauioq] Yk PIPRLoU; S1 EPEUES,

SHVH TTVAHINNNS ANV SHVHD YEINIM J0 INSWIAOW FALLYAVANOD

£02°060'T  89£'0ST  SER'6ER TYLOL
606651 ZE9'T LLTRST I[BLueunmy
148 0Lz 109°€ dm oSTIN
£98°29 00t'L £9%'S nofay pay
TOL'T F43 | 065°T SpI0Su0])
£L0'TT LELI 9EE's1 2010
STF'80Z wiLTl £69'561 asogd
0L£°TE9 SEY'9ZT  SL8'SOP nofuy
STOZ/0LT OL STOULL/Y
6ETTOET  LOE'0ST  TEGTROT TYLOL
F0L'38T 66L°T $06°CBT I[eJ/1aunung
98T 62T £€9'T dAy 98I
££6'08 0zL'eT £1Z'0L nofuy pay
Lzrs 0 LZI's BpI00BA))
00L'sL LEO'T £90'%1 SIMLOTY
ZEL'o5 FELFE S6E'1FT asog
18€°2L0L 8BLYPT  £6S°TOV nofoy
STOZ/9T/T OL SI0T/E/T
S6T'6E8 TREPLL  EI6'H99 TY.10L
3TLG0T 609 611'60T Ieg/emumng
ZE6'L s6k LEFL A 98I
6818 0£0°LL 6Z1°LE nofwy poy
i1 1 961 [A7A IPIONOT
L¥EDT It 90£°91 sonuo)
SPE'SHT $9£°01 081°¢ET asog
oPL’0ly  S¥9'syl  00S'¥IT nofay
SIOT/UT OL $IOTAOLZL
TZ0°LRT'T  9LV'0EE  S¥E°956 TYLOL
95R'60E 6E9'F L1Z'50€ [[edpunmg
916'F £ab £TH'y M 98Iy
0LS°bL LISBI  £60°95 nofiry pay
6269 $61 PEL'D FPIOSUO]Y
BLZ'RZ ¥ETT 09z Lt )
£98°bEZ UL 1SL°L61 asog
609’189 O8TLLT  €ZE'09E nofry
PIOT/ET/ZL OL PIOT/TT
LEO'EET'T  EgLL€E  KO6'SGS TYLOL
E0S'TZE  £vg'9 096'P1E e d/1aunmms
SEPOT [3 £ ZZ101 dM 95T
OPE'TL 8K 858°0$ nofiry pay
8HE'L EES STEL 9pI00Ta))
8608 391 YIB0E eonnogy
08Z°Z0Z PLYBE 908'€91 asog
697888 ObZ'OLT  6TOBIE nofuy
PIOT/SIZI OL ¢T0LTT/IL
™oL WO,  ORSewoq
K]
NOSVYES S1-F10Z
T -Lo8eg

DEPIMALIGT) J8d Ysar]

910Z/E/9J0 5Y
61 "oN poday doxy

15



IZh9s £19'6Z1 808°00F IVIOL
0 0 ] [[eJ/eunmg
£9 0 €9 dM I
SEE9E &It 9I6LE nofay pay
0 0 0 APIOIUOT)
0 0 0 Lo 0]
£E0'TZL 06€8 [5x4k osog
066'8LE 08911 981'Z9T nofiry
90T OL 9T0TOLE
$05°€8S 1Is°0rT YE6°THY IVIOL
0 0 0 [led/1zuumng
Le 0 LE 4 ST
655°9¢ oL $6L°1E nofiry pay
0 0 0 IPI0DU0T)
0 0 [} 20107y
ZREZET 1F9'8 ThL'eTl as0g
LTS¥IY 9OI°LTT 17¥'L82 nafiry
SI0USTE OL STOLTTIE
SBELYL L98°E81 81LE9¢ TVLIOL
009 0 009 B dsummg
£01 0 £01 dA 95N
S06'€S LTl's 8LLSY nofuy pay
143 0 6 3pIONO]
08€E°T 0 0%ET S0Mmu0)
678261 9.9°0Z EST'TLT osog
ZL9'86% +90°95T 809°0FE nofoy
9L HE OL S10TILLT
EIE'PEL L8 EST LEFOES TVIOL
968°01 1} 958'01 1B J/Pmmng
191'1 0 911 dM 2SI
299°9F LIg'8 SHERE nofiry pay
0 0 0 9pIOBUO])
L6T'L 6LL 81§ BOMUOT)
£90°72 08L°61 €8T'T0T asog
FEXTIS 00061 PETLLE nofiry
ST0L/9%T QL ITOT/EE/T
PLI'LLE 980°STZ 38079 TVIOL
£€6'Z9 90E L7929 B deunung
L69'T 0 L69'T A ST
0£985 9£E's P6T'ES nofiry pay
& 0 134 ap1o3mo)
s09'c 0661 s19 s91m0])
FIT'L9T FIE'SE 008'1€2 asog
35313 [ 421 TIOLLY nofayy
9I0Z/TIT OL 9T0TOE/T
5L o, T
Ty EpEuE)

NOSVHS 51-¢10T

Vi 10T DRSO M PIPASUL 5| UPRUED,

SUVHd TIVAAAWINOS ANV SEVHD ZALNIM 40 INTWNIAOW HALLVAVANOD

Ob6'SH 69L'61Z  TL19TH ULATeNR
0 0 0 B./aemums
96E°1 0 96E] M ST
8EO'LY Z68'6 ovI'LE nafiry pey
0 0 0 IpI0ONCD)
L8H'T 0 L8¥'1 aonme)
9zZLTIL 106°L STPOT ssog
£62'E8Y 0.6°10C  LIE'IST nofuy
SI0T/OT/P OL ST0TBT/E
9F'6L9 L80°38T  6SE'TSH TYIOL
0 o 0 R4 AsURng
TETl 0 51T dm oS
EV6'ES LOE0T 9L5'SH nofry pay
0 0 0 APIOOUOT)
Lve'T 0 e SOMUY
LTEOST 16¥71 SEL'LET as0g
LLR'6O¥ 6TTSO1  BH9HOE nofuy
SITLTE OL SHOTYL/E
605°0t8 LO9'BTE  Z¥B'II9 TVIOL
SOL6T L66'Y 8041 =/ Eumamg
1841 3€ €31 dm 8T
PIS'T9 LO0'L1 LOS Y nofiry pay
0 0 0 SPIO0U0D)
6LT'D 0 6LZ9 2oTmoy
L56'061 9651 19€'9LT ssog
£L6°096 670761  PPS'89E nofiry
STOUETIE OL ST0T/STT
909'¢08 $60°T0Z  TIS'T0Y TVLIOL
11ZF £E 898°5h e/ teunmng
268 0 268 M 0sIN
Lb6'8s 1ot SET'8Y nofiry pey
0 0 0 apIo3mo)
8T8t 24 $SL'E somuo])
PEROLT SEI°ET 9£L"€91T as0g
878'91¢ OF8'9LL  B86'GEE nofoy
STOT/LT/T OL STOTV LT
SIZRELE LELTIST  160°THL TVIOL
PST'ETL LETT LIGTII B 4/AouTumns
616 8¢ 188 dM 28I
9EET 1943 OBR'ES nofuy pay
0 0 0 paoauc)
£6¥'9 ¥ 609 s0TWIOY)
065°20T 10881 68L'E81 osog
9££°309 ITI'ETT  SITE8E nofuy
STOEL/T OL STOUIEL
oL BodxT,  SRsewmeq
7 epERE)
NOSVES S1-+10T
€ -Lofeg

SIPAUQTY 183 ] YSAL]

9102/6/9J0 5Y
61 "oN uodoy doiy

116



SLL'TRLLY SPLYOEY £E0'BLE'ET TV.LIOL
T00°L9E Y GLYEZE TTEERO'Y TR/ eumng
0Z6'1€T L66°61 £26°TIT IS
9IET'L56 0ZE'8ZT 9ERBTL nofry pay
150°0r 662°C TL'EY spiooucy
£07'61 96691 L0T'9LT sonuos)
796°170°¢ TSTRYE TIL'EL9'T 2s0g
Sep'sz0'e £0Z'sZ¥’Ee  I8TO09'S nofury
ALYG OLTVIOL
L60'1LT 5¥0'66 T80'ZLE TYLOL
0 0 0 Hed/mumg
0 0 0 JM O8I
0£8°S §E0°1 SELY nofiry pay
0 0 0 ap10dUn))
0 0 0 CL e
9Z6°0E £0LY £28°ST o80g
1hL'PET 80£°E6 EEY THI nofiry
STO/E OL STOTNUS
LBG'OLE 6FLOTT SE£L'09T IVioL
0 0 0 e4/Ruumg
PET 0 P6E°T d 98N
LTLFL 766 SELEL nofiny pay
0 0 0 SPICOUOD)
0 0 0 aopuas)
1s7'ES 66L°01 69Ty asog
STH10E 856°86 LEVT0T nofoy
910Z/0/S OL 9T0T/L/S
L96"L6P PILZET EPT'69E TVIOL
0 0 0 BJ/Ruung
§¢ 0 sc dm 93T
ZISVT L7 8h0°CT nofuy pay
0 0 0 BpIOORDD)
0 0 0 sonmo))
195°L6 69L°T1 6L Y8 osog
6ES°SLE I61°LIT BYERST nofiry
910%/9/5 OL 910Z/E T
THF'S8S £4Z°€91 861°TCk TVI0OL
0 0 0 [[e4/I3uramg
¥o 0 ¥o A oS
sPI'sE OEH'T SILOE noliry pay
0 0 0 apI03m0])
0 0 0 sommoy)
L¥'OLL 155°1 961001 ssog
TBLOEY z91'9p1 0Z9'v8T nofuy
I0TTLY OL 910TGIY
EoL O, IO
¥ SpeiE)y

NOSVHS 91-510T

1oda 10w ‘DYSSWOC i PIPTIOU] 5T BPEIRD) 4

SAVYE TIVAAMIWNINAS ANV SHVEd SHINLMA 40 INTANIAON JALLYEVIWOD

o86'89F'61  BSU'R9T'S  BIGQOTPL TVIOL
LEY'STI'S 6S5°0Tr 8L0°C69°F [[eJAmmmg
086'BLT TLE'TE R09°LY1 dMOSI
£99'F66 POLGST  6S6'8EL nofiry pay
FE0'65 8SL1 UTLS SpI0oUTy
898'5¢T PLEBL YeYLIT So[moy
BETECR'T 089°0ZE BSS'TLET osog
995*166'6 11961T%  $S6'TLL'S nofuy
HLYA OLTVIOL
8BS EEE POL'TEL  ¥ZR'1ZT TV10L
0 0 0 T8 d/sswmmg
0 0 0 dM ST
99¢'2E £9L'T €0L°6T nofuy psy
0 0 0 JpseoUn])
0 0 0 Co e
LbL'ST €E6°T FISEL asog
SLE'CRT 200201  LOE9LT nofry
ST10T/S/9 OL STOZTET/S
SS0°Tkk PRGIST LTT68T TY.LOL
0 0 0 [lBd/mung
0 ] 0 M SSIR
L19°LE £9LF $68°ZE nofiry pay
1 0 1] SpIOOUO])
0 0 0 83MWO])
LBF'TE LY SII'8Z asog
1S6'0LE GOB'TYL  THI'STT nofy
STOLTS OL S10Z/6/S
LOO'065 SESTIZ  TAI'BLE TVIOL
0 0 0 Tled/swamg
0 0 0 dM oSN
60L'TH 11e'7 86500 nofuy pay
0 0 0 apI0suDny)
0 0 0 Jomnosy
LPITS ELLTT FPLE'GE os0g
161°C6¥ 1SL'961  0O¥'86T nofury
SI0Z/8/S OL STOTSTY
PLL'YBS 0EP'E8T  HPE'TOF TYIOL
0 0 0 [ J/raummg
SLLT 0 SLL'T dm IS
£56°0F 0LL'T £RI'SE nofiry pay
0 0 o SpI0OUD])
0 0 0 2ona))
L00F8 10491 ops'Lo as0g
6E0°TSY 661°591  0¥8'93T nofuy
STOTPIF OL STOTTIA
TEsT yodxg,  SHsmog
P Epeuey
NOSVHS S1-P10T
p = Lafeg

sapmunnes 1ma ] Ysalg

9107/€/930 5V
61 "oN nodoy doiy

17



SPLPOEY  EEOBLEET €81°668'S  TRY'ITBPI 68STSLS  ESH698°ET OEE'8ES’S  68S°ILSHT 9E6'PEY'S  STEOPIEL
0 0 L -89 08L'301 SST'8ST 8£6°001 THIREL SEOEET TEL'YSI ¥58°8Z vEL'68
0 0 L1/9-v/9 6509Z1 TOE'ELT LYLTTT R1S¥8I LE99EI 626°<81 ET8'L6 vLS eV
SPLVYIEY  EE0'RLE'ET EoKNg 9W'P99°C  SZTTO6H'YI PO6'6ESS  E6L°9PSEL 360°892°C  8T600THI 65T806°C  LI9'LOV'ET
9r0°66 160TLY €9 - 1T/ SLGRTL wrsiz 760°ZE] S50°TET POLILT ¥I8°1CZ LO¥1TL 6€1°L61
6vLOL1 8£7°092 0T/S - LIS 6L9'8p1 768°08T 655°LY1 0TE'S6T 6161 111682 T¥S811 0L27'T8C
¥ZLZET £FTC9¢E 9S - EUY YSTILL SovpeE €66°911 PLTLSE SERTIT T81°8LE 891°ZT1 £96°00€
EVTEOT 61T Ty - 61t [41) & 4A 1 LOT'6EY L6V 191 960°L1Y OEV €8T TEETOY 999°L91 005°79¢
£19°6T1 808°00% 8/ - 9T/E 69L°LTT 0L8°TOS 0Z9°LR1 L61°85F 69L61T 89T ISHTLT 6V9°6LE
T1S0¥I P66 T sTe-TlE ¥82°761 EEE09S £9L°C1T EEVSIS TET1'881 £6TT6¥ OFLIST LO0SFY
L98°€81 8IL'E9S T1/E - LT/T 999°EHe ¥TL1S9 19v°1€T 285009 Y6L'8TT STL'CI9 #10°02T EIL°ERS
9L8°€91 0PH'0£9 9z/T- €I 9L9'F£T LET069 £9L°CTT $80°919 cTL10T 8ES°C09 6£8°81T (47414
680°1T 111294 LT - 0E/1 LOLELT LYI96L 1L8°1ST LTT6YL 178°15¢ 8EYLYL 196°6£T 8T YI8
TLPPRT 86778 6¢/1-91/1 I6¥°L1E 967006 888 618TL8 01+°05Z TEEOPR 8958 711988
91L'681 685'€96 SUL-T1 1#0°86C 690°€90°1 ¥ZET6T S¥R°L96 86L°082 TI1°680°1 8TTTOE £00°€56
Ly6'651 SLITI9 1/1-61/21 890°CZT 60L'CLY 68L°LIT £L£°699 £35°pL1 TLL699 1927307 169629
96167  8T6'BER 81/ZL - 621 £HR°LYE 1ZE'sr6 IETEHE £L€°798 09Z°1€€ LOL'E96 799°19¢ ETTIH8
9L0°192 L96°E98 YL - 11T LBT'E9E SITTEG 6£9°E6E L8T1010'1 6FI°8EE 600706 LOLLEY E11°680°1 m
POEPSE £0L°066 0Z/11 - /11 061°61¢ Z6¥°S90°T 16655 86L°788 TLO'BEE C0E"960°] 600°FSH 05£9£8
REV6HE 881°€00°1 9/11 - +T/01 80S°10¥ 6v8°TIOT SROISH 16£°896 SOv°THE TE9°L¥0°T v66°SHF $927°300°T
6E9°CPE  OEI'8%6 £2/01 - 01/01 1885 342 S62°196 6£9°SH PHO'LT6 ££6°78€E 91L°CT6 S19°0ZY 000166
£09°L9€ 120°TLL 6/01 - 92/6 L6EVoF 98£°Li8 T86°0EY 6S6°C8L THO'SLY 998°cL8 ¥81°0LY The'chs
LLS9S ££0°86V'T €T/6 - 10/8 867°68¢ 9R£°985°| SSH'ETS 69S°€2E’T £L1°609 886'309°1 P06t £EL'COE°T
podxy AsImo(q yodxy AMWSFIWOQ yaodxy Jysamog prodxy MPSIWOQ saodxy MpsIWO
» epeuae) » BpEuUE) ¥ EPEUE)) % BPBUE)) ¥ Eprue)
910Z-ST0Z SBeroAY TBOX-0M], BRIGAY 183X -0AL STOZ-P10Z £T0T-TT0Z

0TIVS9T TIT'69T°E 679°560°¢ 0LS'8LOE PoOrLTSE TT6°856'C 6L6T89°E pauodu] sxesg

%E9'E %ILY %I16°S %09°€ %L6'T %9y %99'9 SqEIIBAY U309

%LE96 %6T 56 %60 76 %0¥'96 %E0°LE 9%9£°S6 %EE6 PAAOI R0

£60°699 6VLEV6 6IETTL'T P66°8LL VELRLS T9T'ES6 Opt'S81'T slqe[teAy

BLLTL'LY S1L°080%61 986°89+61 £LL°0FR'0T 9.8°16'31 LBLO6S 61 £5T°LTS%91 ParoO

IL8TTHRI POP0£0°0T SOE°169°0Z LOL'GI9IT 0196461 6¥0rrsoT £65°T08°LY moyoeg

910g-unf-g0 aferoay S10Z-unr-¢o ¥10Z-un[-99 £10T-unf-L40) T10Z-un-g0 110Z-unf-01

910Z-$T0T Tea) ALY S10Z-¥102 ¥10Z-€10Z £10T-C102 TIOT-T10E 1102-0102

g 28eg HALLIWNOD dvVad HSTA 910T/£/9 J0 5V 61 "ON Moday dox)



_! piElO  Suvio olisio _

o

NN J 1/1
.w.a_v @.%«Q@%M.@%Mo%ﬂ.%“&m% m% azm_%o,.a‘_vav |

%%%

T ooooor
r 000002
I CO0OOE
r 000001
- 00C00%

(epeues ojm) Jodxg

000009

- 000004

%%% %%%%, %@% z,,,a,

nw.o( N 0/.01

L

BpRUEY) 7§ 25sawoq

r oococN
r 00000V
r 000009
I 000008
- 000000}
r 00000Z}
BT 00000¢1

0000091

- 0000081

EpEUET) ' JNsewoq
ININIAOW Hv3d HSTYA

119







